
 

Bindusagar Reddy Gaurang Pandya Vacant Liberty Lomeli Areli Martinez 

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5 

 

 

 

       

SIERRA VIEW LOCAL HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING  

465 West Putnam Avenue, Porterville, CA – Board Room 

 

AGENDA 

January 28, 2025 
    

OPEN SESSION (5:00 PM) 

 

The Board of Directors will call the meeting to order at 5:00 P.M. at which time the Board of 

Directors will undertake procedural items on the agenda. At 5:05 P.M. the Board will move to 

Closed Session regarding the items listed under Closed Session. The public meeting will 

reconvene in person at 5:30 P.M. In person attendance by the public during the open 

session(s) of this meeting is allowed in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government 

Code Sections 54950 et seq.  

 

Call to Order  

 

I. Approval of Agendas 

Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove the Agenda as Presented/Amended 

 

The Board Chairman may limit each presentation so that the matter may be 

concluded in the time allotted.  Upon request of any Board member to extend the 

time for a matter, either a Board vote will be taken as to whether to extend the time 

allotted or the chair may extend the time on his own motion without a vote.  

 

II. Adjourn Open Session and go into Closed Session 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION (5:01 PM) 

 

As provided in the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code Sections 54950 et seq., the Board 

of Directors may meet in closed session with members of the staff, district employees and its 

attorneys.  These sessions are not open to the public and may not be attended by members 

of the public.  The matters the Board will meet on in closed session are identified on the 

agenda or are those matters appropriately identified in open session as requiring immediate 

attention and arising after the posting of the agenda.  Any public reports of action taken in 

the closed session will be made in accordance with Gov. Code Section 54957.1 

 

III. Closed Session Business  

 

A. Pursuant to Evidence Code Sections 1156 and 1157.7; Health and Safety Code 

Section 32106(b):  Chief of Staff Report  

 

B. Pursuant to Evidence Code Sections 1156 and 1157.7; Health and Safety Code 

Section 32106(b):   



 

 

  

 

SIERRA VIEW LOCAL HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA  

JANUARY 28, 2025 
 

Page 2 
Bindusagar Reddy Gaurang Pandya Vacant Liberty Lomeli Areli Martinez 

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5 

 

 

1. Evaluation – Quality of Care/Peer Review/Credentials  

 

2. Quality Division Update –Quality Report  
 

C. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54954.5(c) and 54956.9(d): Conference with 

Legal Counsel Regarding Significant Exposure to Litigation  

 

D. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54962; Health and Safety Code Section 

32106(b):  Discussion Regarding Trade Secrets Pertaining to Service and 

Strategic Planning (1 Item). Estimated date of Disclosure: January 1, 2026  

 

E. Pursuant To Gov. Code Section 54956.9(D)(2), Conference With Legal Counsel 

About Recent Work Product (B)(1) And (B)(3)(F):  Significant Exposure To 

Litigation; Privileged Communication (1 Item).  

 

To the extent items on the Closed Session Agenda are not completed prior to the scheduled 

time for the Open Session to begin, the items will be deferred to the conclusion of the Open 

Session Agenda. 

  

IV. Adjourn Closed Session and go into Open Session 

 

OPEN SESSION (5:30 PM)  

 

V. Closed Session Action Taken 

 

Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.1; Action(s) to be taken Pursuant to Closed 

Session Discussion 

 

A. Chief of Staff Report 

 Recommended Action: Information only; no action taken 

 

B. Quality Review  

 

1. Evaluation – Quality of Care/Peer Review/Credentials 

Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove Report as Given 

 

2. Quality Division Update –Quality Report  

Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove Report as Given 

 

 



 

 

  

 

SIERRA VIEW LOCAL HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA  

JANUARY 28, 2025 
 

Page 3 
Bindusagar Reddy Gaurang Pandya Vacant Liberty Lomeli Areli Martinez 

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5 

 

C. Conference with Legal Counsel Regarding Significant Exposure to Litigation 

 Recommended Action: Information Only; No Action Taken 

  

D. Discussion Regarding Trade Secret 

 Action Recommended: Information Only; No Action Taken 

 

E. Conference with Legal Counsel  

Recommended Action:  Information Only; No Action Taken 

 

VI. Public Comments 

 

Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54954.3 - NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC - At this time, members 

of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the agenda.  Under state 

law, matters presented under this item cannot be discussed or acted upon by the 

Board at this time.  For items appearing on the agenda, the public may make 

comments at this time or present such comments when the item is called.  This is the 

time for the public to make a request to move any item on the consent agenda to the 

regular agenda. Any person addressing the Board will be limited to a maximum of 

three (3) minutes so that all interested parties have an opportunity to speak with a 

total of thirty (30) minutes allotted for the Public Comment period.  Please state your 

name and address for the record prior to making your comment. Written comments 

submitted to the Board prior to the Meeting will distributed to the Board at this time, 

but will not be read by the Board secretary during the public comment period. 

 

VII. Consent Agenda 

Recommended Action: Approve Consent Agenda as presented  

 

Background information has been provided to the Board on all matters listed under 

the Consent Agenda, covering Medical Staff and Hospital policies, and these items 

are considered to be routine by the Board.  All items under the Consent Agenda 

covering Medical Staff and Hospital policies are normally approved by one motion.    

If discussion is requested by any Board member(s) or any member of the public on any 

item addressed during public comment, then that item may be removed from the 

Consent Agenda and moved to the Business Agenda for separate action by the 

Board.            

 

VIII. Approval of Minutes 

 

A. December 17, 2024 Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove December 17, 2024 Minutes of 

the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 



 

 

  

 

SIERRA VIEW LOCAL HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA  

JANUARY 28, 2025 
 

Page 4 
Bindusagar Reddy Gaurang Pandya Vacant Liberty Lomeli Areli Martinez 

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5 

 

 

B. January 20, 2025 Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove January 20, 2025 Minutes of the 

Special Meeting of the Board of Directors 

 

 

IX. Business Items 

 

A. Sierra View Foundation Check Presentation  

Recommended Action:  Information only; no action taken 

 

B. Vote to Appoint Director to Fill Vacancy for Zone 3. Board will Review 

Applications and Interview Applicants who are Present Prior to Vote 

Recommended Action: Appoint Director to Vacancy for Zone 3 

 

C. Administer Oath of Office for Director Appointed to Fill Zone 3 

Recommended Action: Motion directing hospital administration to immediately 

notify the Tulare County Elections Official of the appointment.  

 

D. December 2024 Financials 

Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove Report as Given 

 

E.  Investment Report - Quarter Ending December 31, 2024 

Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove Investment Report 

 

F.  Capital Report - Quarter Ending December 31, 2024 

Recommended Action: Approve/Disapprove Capital Report 

 

G.  Annual Appointments 

 

1. Food and Dietetic Services Director – Zaelin Stringham 

Recommended Action:  Approve Appointment 

 

2. Environmental Safety/Security Officer – Gary Wilbur 

Recommended Action:  Approve Appointment 

 

3. Patient Safety Officer – Melissa Mitchell 

Recommended Action:  Approve Appointment 

 

4. Infection Control Officer – Rosalva Gonzalez 

Recommended Action:  Approve Appointment  



 

 

  

 

SIERRA VIEW LOCAL HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA  

JANUARY 28, 2025 
 

Page 5 
Bindusagar Reddy Gaurang Pandya Vacant Liberty Lomeli Areli Martinez 

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5 

 

  

H.  Board Self Evaluation and 2025 Goals According to 4.2 Bylaw Requirement 

 Recommended Action: Information Only; No Action Taken 

   

X. CEO Report 

 

XI. Announcements:  

  

A. Regular Board of Directors Meeting – February 25, 2025 at 5:00 p.m.  

 

XII. Adjournment  

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

Any person with a disability may request the agenda be made available in an appropriate alternative format.   

A request for a disability-related modification or accommodation may be made by a person with a disability who 

requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in the public meeting to Melissa Mitchell, VP of 

Quality and Regulatory Affairs, Sierra View Medical Center, at (559) 788-6047, Monday – Friday between 8:00 a.m. 

– 4:30 p.m.  Such request must be made at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE ABOUT COPIES 

 

Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the agenda packet, as well 

as the agenda packet itself, are available for public inspection/copying during normal business hours at the 

Administration Office of Sierra View Medical Center, 465 W. Putnam Ave., Porterville, CA 93257.  Privileged and 

confidential closed session materials are/will be excluded until the Board votes to disclose said materials.   

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 



Senior Leadership Team 1/28/2025 

Board of Director’s Approval 

 

Bindusagar Reddy, MD, Chairman 

 

 

1/28/2025 

 

 

SIERRA VIEW MEDICAL CENTER 

CONSENT AGENDA 

January 28, 2025 

BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S APPROVAL 

The following Polices/Procedures/Protocols/Plans have been reviewed by Senior Leadership Team 

and are being submitted to the Board of Director’s for approval:                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                               Pages            Action 

 

 

 

Policies: 

 

 Applicant References and Requests for References  

 Cashless System 

 Contamination with Radioactive Materials 

 Food Purchasing and Receiving 

 Food Service Cleaning and Sanitation 

 Food Supplies and Storage 

 Holiday Pay 

 Injury and Illness Prevention Program 

 Leave of Absence – Administrative 

 Leave of Absence – California Mandated 

 Maximum Salary Grades, Meeting or Exceeding (Lump Sum 

Payments) 

 Radioactive Waste Disposal 

 Recognition – Staff Achievements Milestones 

 Scope of Service – Food and Nutrition 

 Service Awards 

 Shift Differential Pay 

 Training and Meeting Time Pay 

 Voting 

 

Plans: 

 Food Service Emergency Plan 

 Workplace Violence Prevention Plan 

 

Forms 

 025592 Sepsis Alert Checklist 

 

 

 

 

 

1-2 

3-6 

7-10 

11-12 

13 

14-18 

19-20 

21-26 

27-28 

29-33 

34 

 

35-36 

37-39 

40-41 

42 

43 

44-45 

46 

 

 

47-58 

59-73 

 

 

74-75 

 

Approve 

↓ 

 

 
 

 



    Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

APPLICANT REFERENCES AND REQUESTS FOR 

REFERENCES 

SECTION:   

 

Page 1 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To define the procedure for verifying employment, educational references and personal references for 

prospective employees, contracted employees, volunteers, and in some cases, individual contractors and 

employees of contractors, while ensuring confidentiality of information regarding salary, job 

performance, disciplinary actions, etc., for present employees. 

 

POLICY: 

 

As part of the background screening, and in order to determine eligibility for placement within the 

hospital, reference checks are initiated prior to the hire date or selection as a contracted employee, 

volunteer, individual contractor or employee of a contractor.  References include but are not limited to 

verification and investigation of past and present employment, educational references (if applicable), and 

personal references.   

 

Requests for references on present employees are handled in such a way as to ensure confidentiality of 

information regarding salary, job performance, disciplinary actions, etc.  

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS:  

 

ALL EMPLOYEES, VOLUNTEERS, INDIVIDUAL CONTRACTORS AND EMPLOYEES OF 

CONTRACTORS 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

Applicant References: 

 

It is the responsibility of the Human Resources Department to: 

 

 Obtain written authorization from prospective applicants to check references during pre-screening 

interview. 

 

 Notify applicants that references will be requested prior to employment. 

 

 Ensure verification of references is completed. 

 

 Ensure confidentiality of information obtained during reference verification process. 

 

1. If applicant will not permit contact with his/her current employer for fear of jeopardizing their 

present position, he/she must be told that employment is contingent upon receipt of suitable 

reference checks.   

 

1



    Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

APPLICANT REFERENCES AND REQUESTS FOR 

REFERENCES 

SECTION:   

 

Page 2 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

2. References for all prospective employees will be completed prior to employment.  Reference 

checks may be requested from past and present employers, schools, universities, and personal 

references of applicants.  

 

3. If selected for employment or placement, reference data received from the applicant’s 

employer(s), school, etc. will be placed in the employee’s personnel file. 

 

4. All reference material received will be directed to Human Resources. 

 

Outside Reference Requests: 

 

1. Telephone requests for reference checks requested by outside entities will be handled as follows: 

 

a. The caller must always be referred to the Human Resources Department.  No information 

may be given by anyone other than the Human Resources Designee. 

 

b. SVMC does not provide information regarding salary, job performance,  

disciplinary action, etc. via telephone. 

 

c. The only information that can be provided via telephone is verification of  

employment dates, position held and department. 

 

2. Sierra View Medical Center (SVMC) will respond to a written request for reference as follows: 

 

a. All written requests must be accompanied by a release, which is signed by the employee 

or previous employee, for whom the reference is requested.  Human Resources will then 

release the employees’ dates of employment, position held and hourly rate of pay. 

 

b. Written requests for reference that are not accompanied by a signed release will be          

returned with an explanation of Sierra View Medical Center’s policy. 

 

 Access to reference data will be limited to Human Resources or Designee, and a Department 

 Director who is considering an employee for promotion, transfer, or other personnel action. 

 

REFERENCES: 

 

 Title XXII 

 

 The Joint Commission (7/2024).  Hospital accreditation standards.  Joint Commission Resources. Oak 

Brook, IL. 

 

 OMH CLAS Standard 6 

2



    Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

CASHLESS SYSTEM 

SECTION:   

 

Page 1 of 4 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To define the protocol for Sierra View Medical Center’s Cashless System. 

 

POLICY: 

 

Sierra View Medical Center personnel may elect to utilize the Cashless System plans for purchases at the 

Café.  Personnel may choose one or multiple plans available.   

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS: 

 

ALL EMPLOYEES, VOLUNTEERS AND EMERGENCY ROOM PHYSICIANS 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

Available Plans: 

 

1. A Cashless Payroll Deduction Authorization form must be completed and signed by staff 

members and submitted to Payroll  prior to use of the cashless system.  If the staff member 

desires to terminate participation in the Cashless System program, he/she must complete a new 

“Cashless System Payroll Deduction Authorization Form” and check the declination box.  This 

form must be submitted to Payroll  and will not take effect until the next pay period. 

 

2. Cashless System plans available:   

 

a. Payroll Deduction (Employees only): 

 

 Purchases are deducted directly from an employee’s payroll check.  A maximum 

limit is permitted based on the employee’s status as indicated below or to the extent 

permitted under state and federal wage and hour laws. 

 

 Full time – a maximum of $200.00 per pay period 

 Part time – a maximum of $100.00 per pay period 

 Per diem- not eligible for payroll deduction  

 

 Unused amounts will not roll over to the next pay period. 

 

 If the employee’s earnings do not cover the charges incurred, the Cashless System 

privileges will be suspended until the balance is paid in full. 

 

b. Prepaid Declining Balance (Employees only): 

 

 An amount may be prepaid at the Café register.  This amount declines with 

purchases.  There are no maximum limits on this plan. 

3



    Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

CASHLESS SYSTEM 

SECTION:   

 

Page 2 of 4 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

c. Gift Cards:  

 

 A gift card is purchased at the Café register.  The staff member pays with cash or 

credit card, electing the amount desired.  Upon depleting the card’s balance, the card 

may be restored in the same process with the exception of a non-reloadable card. 

 

 Non-reloadable cards will be collected by the cashier at the close of the transaction. 

 

 Payroll Deduction or Prepaid Declining Balance cannot be utilized to purchase gift 

cards. 

 

d. Credit Card:   

 

 Visa, Master Card, Discover and American Express credit cards will be accepted at 

the registers with proper identification, which may include the staff member’s 

identification badge. 

 

Identification Badges: 

 

1. Staff members must present their hospital identification badge to receive their discount and to 

utilize the Payroll Deduction and/or Prepaid Declining Balance plans. 

 

2. It is against policy for an employee to allow another employee to use his/her badge for any 

reason, which includes making a Cashless System purchase. 

 

3. Personnel who lose their badge will not be able to utilize Payroll Deduction or Prepaid Declining 

Balance plans until the next day after replacement of their badge. 

 

a. Replacement badges may be obtained from Human Resources. 

 

Exceptions for Designated Staff: 

 

1. Emergency Department (ED) Physicians, Hospitalists, Intensivists, and Adult Volunteers are not 

employees of the hospital and receive complimentary meals during their scheduled work shift.  

These designated staff will present hospital issued identification badges to receive their meals.  

Complimentary meals are limited to line items with the exception of milk and bottled water.  

Convenience food items such as chips, energy drinks, bottled beverages, etc. are excluded and 

must be paid using cash, credit card or a gift card.  

 

2. Food & Nutrition Service (FNS) personnel are eligible for complimentary meals and limited to 

line items with the exception of milk and bottled water.  Convenience food items such as chips, 

energy drinks, bottled beverages, etc. are excluded and must be paid using one of the available 

plans or cash.  The FNS personnel must be working a scheduled shift and present their hospital 

identification badge to receive their complimentary meal.  

4



    Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

CASHLESS SYSTEM 

SECTION:   

 

Page 3 of 4 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

 

3. Employees returning from a leave will not be able to utilize the cashless system or payroll 

deduction for 24 hours upon their return to work. 

 

Gift Cards Purchased with Hospital Funds: 

 

1. Only management personnel may purchase departmental gift cards for their employees with 

Hospital funds as a form of employee recognition or appreciation. 

 

a. Gift Cards must be purchased at the Café  register with cash or credit cards.  Hospital-

issued American Express cards should not be used. 

 

b. Gift cards given to employees for amounts $25 or greater using SVMC funds are taxable 

to the employee, and therefore must be reported to Payroll.  A Gift Card Receipts form 

must be completed with the employee’s name and the amount received and submitted to 

Payroll. 

 

c. Payroll will include this amount as taxable wages to the employee and withhold 

appropriate taxes.  

 

2. Gift cards cannot be redeemable for cash. 

 

Discrepancies 

 

1. Receipts will be required to substantiate any and all discrepancies, and must be addressed with 

the Food and Nutrition Director within the same meal period that the purchase was made.  No 

refund credits will be made to an account without a receipt, and cash refunds will not be made for 

a credit purchase. 

 

Termination of Employment: 

 

1. If an employee provides notice to terminate employment, all privileges will be removed and they 

will not be eligible to continue in the Cashless System program. 

 

2. Payroll Deduction (Employees only) – All charges are due and payable upon termination.  The 

Hospital reserves the right to recover the balance of any outstanding charges owed by a 

terminated employee to the extent permitted under state and federal law. 

 

3. Prepaid Declining Balance (Employees only) – Remaining balances will be reimbursed on the 

employee’s final payroll check. 

 

Abuse of the Cashless System program may lead to disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 

 

5



    Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

CASHLESS SYSTEM 

SECTION:   

 

Page 4 of 4 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

Sierra View Medical Center (SVMC) reserves the right to change the requirements for participation in 

this program at any time. 

 

 

6



 Emergency Operations Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

CONTAMINATION WITH RADIOACTIVE 

MATERIALS 

SECTION:   

Special Circumstances 

Page 1 of 4 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 
 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To establish guidelines for the identification, decontamination, management, and reporting of patients 

exposed to radioactive material.  

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS: GOVERNING BOARD, MEDICAL STAFF, ALL HOSPITAL 

EMPLOYEES, VOLUNTEERS, VENDORS 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

LEVEL: Independent 

 

SUPPORTIVE DATA: The primary objectives will be to care for the patient's immediate life threatening 

health care needs, to prevent contamination of personnel and the environment, and to decontaminate the 

patient. Patients may present from outside the hospital or from within as in the case of radiation accident 

in the Radiology or Cancer Treatment Center areas of the hospital. 

 

ASSESSMENT: 

 

1. Obtain thorough history about the accident, type of radiation exposure, length of exposure, etc. 

 

2. There are four types of Radiation accident patients: 

 

 a. The patient who has received whole or partial EXTERNAL RADIATION may have received a 

lethal dose of radiation but is of no hazard to others. This would be comparable to having 

received radiation therapy for treatment or diagnostic purposes. 

 

 b. The patient who has received INTERNAL CONTAMINATION by inhalation or ingestion. This 

patient is also of no hazard to attendants or the environment. They are similar to a case of 

chemical poisoning. Any external contamination must be removed. Body wastes must be 

collected and saved for measurements of the amounts of radiation to assist in determination of 

appropriate therapy. 

 

 c. The patient with EXTERNAL CONTAMINATION of body surfaces and/or clothing by liquids 

or by dirt particles require STRICT isolation technique to protect others and the hospital 

environment. 

 

 d. The patient with EXTERNAL CONTAMINATION COMPLICATED BY A WOUND must 

have care taken not to cross contaminate surrounding surfaces from the wound and vice-versa. 

The wound and surrounding surfaces are cleaned separately and sealed off when cleaned. Early 

debridement of crushed dirty tissues may be indicated. Good wound irrigation is important. 

 

3. All contaminated or possibly contaminated patients should receive appropriate physical assessment 

to rapidly identify any potential life or limb threatening problem. 

 

7



 Emergency Operations Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

CONTAMINATION WITH RADIOACTIVE 

MATERIALS 

SECTION:   

Special Circumstances 

Page 2 of 4 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 
 

 

4. Assess for signs and symptoms of toxicity related to radiation exposure such as nausea and vomiting, 

diarrhea, hematemesis, tremors, muscle weakness, burns. 

 

NOTIFICATION: 

 

1. Upon notification of the impending arrival of a patient contaminated with radioactive material, the 

nurse will: 

 

 a. Notify the Emergency Department physician and nursing staff. 

 

 b. Notify the House Supervisor, who should then notify Administrator on Call (AOC). 

 

 c. Notify the Radiation Safety Officer, Radiologist and X-Ray Department. X-Ray should secure 

the Survey Meter from Nuclear Medicine and report to the Emergency Department. 

 

 d. Notify Plant Operations to obtain "Spill Cart" from Maintenance Department and bring to 

Decontamination Entrance to Emergency Department. Plant Operations will clear the 

Decontamination Entrance of all non-essential personnel and control traffic to the area.  

 

IDENTIFICATION OF LEVEL OF CONTAMINATION: 

 

1. Upon arrival, the patient should be directed to the Decontamination entrance to the Emergency 

Department. The Survey Meter should be used to identify and record levels of radiation. 

Documented readings should identify time and specific areas checked. 

 

2. If the patient is determined to be safe and of no threat to contamination of personnel or environment, 

they may proceed for evaluation and treatment.  

 

3. If unsafe levels of contamination are detected and the patient requires EXTERNAL 

DECONTAMINATION, they should be placed in the Decontamination Room for thorough 

decontamination procedure. (see below). 

 

4. If the patient is in need of immediate life saving measures, they should be moved to Room #8 by 

way of the Decontamination Room Entrance. Remove all unnecessary items of furniture, etc. before 

the patient enters. Room #8 and the surrounding hall should be cordoned off with yellow warning 

tape as a Contaminated Zone. 

 

5. If radioactive dust is suspected, maintenance should turn off the air circulation system to this area to 

prevent the spread of contamination. 

 

6. All personnel who come in contact with the patient should change into scrub suits and then dress in 

gown, mask, gloves, cap, and booties from the "Spill Cart". They must stay within the restricted 

"Contaminated" zone. 

 

7. The entire area surrounding the "Contaminated" zone should be kept clear of any persons not directly 

required for the care of the patient and decontamination procedure. 

8



 Emergency Operations Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

CONTAMINATION WITH RADIOACTIVE 

MATERIALS 

SECTION:   

Special Circumstances 

Page 3 of 4 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 
 

 

DECONTAMINATION PROCEDURE: 

 

1. Assign teams - one for Decontamination to stay in the "Contaminated" zone and one to stay outside 

in the Clean area to procure needed supplies and equipment. 

 

2. Ambulance attendants or persons accompanying the patient should remain outside the Emergency 

Department at the Decontamination Entrance to await checking with the Survey Meter to determine 

whether or not they are also contaminated and require a Decontamination Procedure. 

 

3. If EXTERNAL CONTAMINATION is involved, save all clothing, bedding from the ambulance, 

blood, urine, stool, vomitus, etc. Place in red plastic bags or containers and label with name, body 

location, time and date. Save each in appropriate containers and further label as "RADIOACTIVE - 

DO NOT DISCARD". 

 

4. Decontamination should start, if medical status permits, with cleansing and scrubbing the areas of 

highest contamination first. If an extremity alone is involved, clothing may serve as an effective 

barrier and the affected limb alone may be scrubbed and cleansed. Initial cleaning should be done 

with soap and warm water. Wash water waste, unless markedly radioactive (check with Survey 

Meter), may be flushed into the community sewage system where dilution will obviate any hazard 

effect. If the body as a whole is involved or clothing generally permeated contaminated material, 

showering and scrubbing in the Decontamination Room will be necessary. Wash water waste will 

collect in the holding tank for later disposal. Pay special attention to hair parts, body orifices, and 

body skin fold areas. REMEASURE with Survey Meter and RECORD measurements after each 

washing until safe levels are reached. 

 

5. If a wound is involved, prepare and cover the wound with self-adhering disposable surgical drape. 

Cleanse neighboring surfaces of skin. Seal off cleansed areas with self-adhering drape. Remove the 

wound covering and irrigate the wound with sterile water. Catch and dispose of water as described 

above. Each step in the decontamination should be proceeded and followed by monitoring with the 

Survey Meter, and recording of the location and measurements of radiation activity. 

 

6. The protective clothing of personnel and the papers on the floor must be saved as described above 

for the patient. These personnel must follow the same monitoring with the Survey Meter and 

decontamination as indicated. 

 

7. After adequate decontamination is verified by the Survey Meter, the patient may be moved to a clean 

gurney to a clean room. 

 

8. The "Contaminated" zone should remain secured until arrangements are made by Engineering and 

the Director of Environmental Services for final clean up.  

 

INTERVENTION: 

 

1. Contamination by ionizing radiation may cause nausea and vomiting within 3 hours of significant 

exposure. The higher the dose, the earlier the onset. Exposure may also cause DNA and tissue 

damage which may not be evident for several hours to years. 

9



 Emergency Operations Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

CONTAMINATION WITH RADIOACTIVE 

MATERIALS 

SECTION:   

Special Circumstances 

Page 4 of 4 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 
 

 

 

2. IV fluids and medication may be indicated for the symptomatic treatment of persistent vomiting, 

diarrhea, and orthostatic changes, and to promote rapid turnover and excretion. 

 

3. Inform and educate patient or significant others regarding the immediate plan of care and follow-up. 

 

REPORTING: 

 

1. Upon receipt of any victim of a Radiation Accident, Administration must notify immediately: 

 

 a. Tulare County Health Department - Environmental Health Division 

 

 b. United States Department of Energy Coordinating Office (415-273-4237). Trained personnel 

will be available to give assistance in aiding with the disposal of collected materials, terminal 

clean up, and other advice on handling the situation as needed. 

 

 c. All phone numbers are on file in the Environmental Services Department 

 

DOCUMENTATION: 

 

All assessments, intervention, measurements, and decontamination efforts should be carefully 

documented on the Patient Care Record. 

 

REFERENCE: 

 

 The Joint Commission (2024).  Hospital accreditation standards. EC.02.02.01 Joint Commission 

Resources. Oak Brook, IL.  

 

10



 Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

FOOD PURCHASING AND RECEIVING 

SECTION:   

 

Page 1 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To be utilized as guidelines for all purchasing and receiving food and supplies for the Food and Nutrition 

Service (FNS) Department. 

 

POLICY: 

 

All food items shall be purchased from reliable vendors that meet regulations specified by federal, state, 

and local health care agencies. Only high quality food products will be accepted when receiving 

deliveries. 

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS:  FOOD AND NUTRITION SERVICE 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

1. All food items shall be purchased from a reputable vendor. 

 

2. All dairy and egg products shall be pasteurized. 

 

3. Special request food items shall be purchased from a local supermarket. 

 

4. Special nutritional supplements are purchased from a reputable vendor. 

 

5. The quantity of foods shall be purchased to meet inventory and the planned menus’ needs. 

 

6. At the time of delivery, the food items shall be checked for accuracy against the invoice. Only 

quality food will be received.  Products deemed unsatisfactory will be refused and returned for 

credit. 

 

7. Items requiring refrigeration or those that are frozen will be put away immediately. 

 

8. Dry storage items will be put away as soon as possible. 

 

9. All empty boxes, crates and other packaging shall be disposed of immediately to eliminate 

potential harboring places for vermin.  Original product packaging shall be retained for lot and 

manufacturing information identification needed for recall items.  

 

10. Invoices are processed and sent to accounts payable weekly for payment. 

 

REFERENCES: 

 

 California Department of Public Health (2023). Retrieved from https://www.cdph.ca.gov. 

 

 Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, Conditions of Participation (2023).  Retrieved from 

https://www.cms.gov/regulations-and-guidance/regulations-and-guidance.html. 

 

11

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/
https://www.cms.gov/regulations-and-guidance/regulations-and-guidance.html


 Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

FOOD PURCHASING AND RECEIVING 

SECTION:   

 

Page 2 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

 The Joint Commission (2023).  Hospital accreditation standards.  Joint Commission Resources. Oak 

Brook, IL. 

 

 Food and Drug Administration (2023).  Retail Food Protection. Retrieved from 

https://www.fda.gov/food/retail-food-protection/fda-food-code.  

 

12

https://www.fda.gov/food/retail-food-protection/fda-food-code


   Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

 FOOD SERVICE CLEANING AND SANITATION 

SECTION:   

 

Page 1 of 1 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To define the protocol for clean and sanitary conditions in all Food and Nutrition Service (FNS) areas. 

 

POLICY: 

 

The FNS areas are maintained in a clean and sanitary condition.  Assigned cleaning schedules are posted 

in the kitchen.  

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS:  FOOD AND NUTRITION SERVICE, ENGINEERING 

DEPARTMENT 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

1. All tableware, counters, shelves and equipment are kept clean, maintained in good repair and are 

free from breaks, corrosions, open seams, cracks and chipped areas. 

 

2. Tableware that is unsanitary or hazardous because of chips, cracks or loss of glaze are discarded. 

 

3. Ice used in connection with food or drink is from a sanitary source and is handled and dispensed 

in a sanitary manner. The kitchen ice machine is kept free from organic and foreign matter. 

Preventative maintenance for the ice machines are performed by the Engineering Department 

according to manufacturer’s guidelines. 

 

4. Kitchen waste not disposed of by mechanical means are kept in leak proof, nonabsorbent, tightly 

closed containers and are disposed of as frequently as necessary to prevent a nuisance or 

unsightliness. 

 

5. Cleaning schedules are posted on the dry storage room door.  FNS staff will initial upon assigned 

cleaning task completion. The FNS Director or designee will routinely check cleaning schedules 

and kitchen cleanliness. 

 

6. Detailed cleaning will not be performed during food preparation and service periods. 

 

7. Cleaning solutions are used in the proper concentration and dilution.  All second container 

chemical spray bottles will be labeled with the manufacturer’s label. 

 

REFERENCES: 

 GACH Title 22 Regulations § 70273 (i) Sanitation 

 

 

13



 Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

FOOD SUPPLIES AND STORAGE 

SECTION:   

 

Page 1 of 5 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

Food and supplies will be stored within regulatory guidelines to maintain optimal nutritional composition 

and prevent all sources of contamination. 

 

POLICY: 

 

The Food and Nutrition Service (FNS) Department shall ensure that all foods, non-foods and supplies 

shall be stored in a manner to prevent physical, chemical and bacterial contamination.  All food shall be 

of good quality and procured from sources approved or considered satisfactory by federal, state, and local 

regulatory agencies. 

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS:  FOOD AND NUTRITION SERVICE 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

1. At least one week's supply of staple foods and at least two (2) days’ supply of perishable foods 

shall be maintained on the premises. 

 

2. Emergency food for 96 hours shall be stored separate (Please refer to FOOD SERVICE 

EMERGENCY PLAN Link ). 

 

3. The storage areas are well ventilated and clean. 

 

4. Food storage refrigerators, walk-ins, and freezers are provided with reliable thermometers.  

Temperatures are inspected/recorded daily to ensure proper temperature control.  Temperature 

records are retained for reference for one (1) year. 

 

5. Perishables are stored at 41°F or below after delivery. 

 

6. Frozen foods are stored at 0°F or below after delivery. 

 

7. Dry or staple items are stored a minimum of 12 inches above the floor and 18 inches from the 

ceiling. 

 

8. Food overages held in storage areas are clearly identified, dated, and appropriately covered.  Food 

items will be labeled with the expiration date and will not be re-used more than once. 

 

9. Chemical materials used for cleaning purposes and pesticides are clearly labeled and stored 

separately, away from food and supplies. 

 

10. All cans that are dented, bulging or leaking shall be considered a possible health risk and will be 

placed in a designated area for return or discarded. 

 

11. The store room stock is rotated using the FIFO (first in first out) method.   

 

14

https://powerdms.com/link/sierraview/document/?id=1578281


 Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

FOOD SUPPLIES AND STORAGE 

SECTION:   

 

Page 2 of 5 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

12. Milk is served in individual containers.  All liquid beverages are served capped. 

 

13. Foods refrigerated or in other storage areas shall be stored appropriately, clearly labeled if not 

easily identifiable, and dated. 

 

14. Hermetically sealed foods or beverages shall have been processed in compliance with applicable 

federal, state and local codes.  No home canned foods will be used. 

 

15. The storeroom is an integral part of the kitchen design and opens directly to the food preparation 

area.  It is in close proximity to the delivery area.  It has sufficient light and ventilation, and is of 

solid construction to discourage rodents and insects.  The storeroom is maintained at a 

temperature between 50-70°F.  

 

16. Only Food & Nutrition Service (FNS) employees are authorized to enter the storeroom.  Any 

person(s) needing to access or survey the storeroom will be escorted by an authorized hospital 

employee. 

 

17. The storeroom shelves are cleaned and checked weekly.  The floor is swept and mopped daily. 

 

18. The outside storage area is organized and cleaned monthly.  All paper products used for eating 

purposes shall be well-wrapped and stored in boxes.  Any uncovered containers shall be 

discarded to avoid possible contamination. 

 

19. All refrigerators in the FNS department are constructed to maintain a temperature at or below 

41°F.  Freezers will be at 0°F or colder.  The temperatures are recorded for all freezers and 

refrigerators daily. 

 

20. Each refrigeration unit will house an internal thermometer. The inside thermometer is the primary 

method of recording temperatures and will be used when documenting temperatures.  The outside 

temperature gauges are not utilized to verify temperatures. 

 

21. Shelving will be constructed to allow for adequate air circulation. 

 

22. All refrigerators and freezers are cleaned weekly. 

 

23. All raw food is stored below cooked foods. 

 

24. All foods in process will be covered, labeled when not clearly identifiable, and dated with 

expiration date. 

 

25. All foods are dated when received to ensure proper rotation.   

 

26. All frozen foods removed from original packaging will be clearly identified with date received.  

Example: An eighty (80) pound case of ground beef may contain eight (8) 10 pound tubes. If six 

(6) tubes were pulled for production, the remaining two (2) may be removed from the original 

15



 Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

FOOD SUPPLIES AND STORAGE 

SECTION:   

 

Page 3 of 5 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

box and placed on the freezer shelf if they are each labeled (ground beef) and with the date 

received. 

 

27. All meat and egg products are thawed in the refrigerator.  In an emergency, frozen meat may be 

thawed under continuous running potable water. 

 

28. Open cans are not stored in the refrigerator. 

 

29. Items that have been thawed are not refrozen. 

 

30. Foods predated with an expiration date such as milk, sour cream, etc. will be dated the day the 

container was opened.  The pre-dated product will be disposed on the manufacturer expiration 

date on the container.   

  

31. Prepared items such as mayonnaise, pickles, dressings, etc. will be dated with a 30 day expiration 

date.   

 

32. Canned or perishable items such as peaches, olives, luncheon meat, etc. will be dated with a three 

(3) day expiration date after opened. 

 

33. Food will be discarded when it exceeds the established standards based on the date listed on the 

label, or as stated on the preprinted expiration date on the food item.   

 

Non-definitive Food Dating Labels such as “Best By” and “Enjoy by”: 

 

Food labels other than “Use by” may be used on food products received, printed by the manufacturer.  
 Per FDA, “Consumers should examine foods for signs of spoilage that are past their “Best if used 

by” date. If the products have changed noticeably in color, consistency or texture, consumers may 

want to avoid eating them.”- https://www.fda.gov/media/101389/download 

 Per USDA, “A "Best if Used By/Before" date indicates when a product will be of best flavor or 

quality.  It is not a purchase or safety date.”-: https://www.fsis.usda.gov/food-safety/safe-food-
handling-and-preparation/food-safety-basics/food-product-dating 

At SVMC, freshness labels will be treated as an expiration date for dry stock items. However for 

perishable items, such as produce, foods may be used past the “best by” date, if they are inspected for 

freshness and no signs of spoilage are present, per USDA and FDA guidelines.  

No items may be used past an expiration, or “use by” date.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16

https://www.fda.gov/media/101389/download
https://www.fsis.usda.gov/food-safety/safe-food-handling-and-preparation/food-safety-basics/food-product-dating
https://www.fsis.usda.gov/food-safety/safe-food-handling-and-preparation/food-safety-basics/food-product-dating


 Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

FOOD SUPPLIES AND STORAGE 

SECTION:   

 

Page 4 of 5 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

FOOD STORAGE 

 

FROZEN FOOD 

 

Meats 

Uncooked beef, lamb, veal, chicken ........................... 6 - 12 months 

Ground meats, sausage, turkey, pork .......................... 1 – 3 months 

Cooked ....................................................................... 1 month 

Meat casserole ............................................................ 2 – 6 months 

 

Baked goods 

Baked .......................................................................... 3 – 6 months 

Unbaked rolls ............................................................. 2 months 

Unbaked cookies ........................................................ 6 months 

 

Ice Cream Products ........................................................... 6 months 

 

Vegetables  ........................................................................ 8 – 12 months 

Potatoes ...................................................................... 2 – 6 months 

 

Fruit juices ........................................................................ 8 months 

 

REFRIGERATOR FOODS 

 
Eggs 

Whole raw in shell ...................................................... 30 days 

Cooked whole ............................................................. expiration date 

 

Milk  .................................................................................. not after date on carton 

 

Cheese ............................................................................... 45 – 60 days 

Hard ............................................................................ not after date on carton 

Cottage ....................................................................... not after date on carton  

 

Juice (thawed) ................................................................... 2 weeks  

 

Canned fruits ..................................................................... 3 days 

 

Margarine and butter ......................................................... 30 days 

 

Desserts 

Gelatin (Jell-O) ........................................................... 3 days 

Pudding and custards .................................................. 3 days 

 

Produce ............................................................................. 1 – 2 weeks 

 

17



 Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

FOOD SUPPLIES AND STORAGE 

SECTION:   

 

Page 5 of 5 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

REFERENCES: 

 

 California Department of Public Health (2023). Retrieved from https://www.cdph.ca.gov. 

 

 Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, Conditions of Participation (2023).  Retrieved from 

https://www.cms.gov/Regulations-and-Guidance.  

 

 FDA, Food Facts - How to Cut Food Waste and Maintain Food Safety, Retrieved on 01.16.2023 
https://www.fda.gov/media/101389/download 
 

 USDA, Food Product Dating, , Retrieved on 01.16.2023  https://www.fsis.usda.gov/food-safety/safe-
food-handling-and-preparation/food-safety-basics/food-product-dating 

 

CROSS REFERENCES: 

 

 FOOD SERVICE EMERGENCY PLAN Link 

 

18

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/
https://www.cms.gov/Regulations-and-Guidance
https://www.fda.gov/media/101389/download
https://www.fsis.usda.gov/food-safety/safe-food-handling-and-preparation/food-safety-basics/food-product-dating
https://www.fsis.usda.gov/food-safety/safe-food-handling-and-preparation/food-safety-basics/food-product-dating
https://powerdms.com/link/sierraview/document/?id=1578281


  Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

HOLIDAY PAY 

SECTION:   

Human Resources 

Page 1 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To define the days designated as holiday for purposes of time off and for determining holiday pay for all 

employees. 

 

POLICY: 

 

The following holidays are recognized by SVMC for purposes of this policy:  

 

 New Year’s Day 

 President’s Day 

 Memorial Day 

 Fourth of July 

 Veterans’ Day 

 Labor Day 

 Thanksgiving Day 

 Christmas 

 

AFFECTED AREAS/PERSONNEL:   ALL HOSPITAL EMPLOYEES 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

COMPENSATION 

 

Non-Exempt Staff 

 

A premium of 100% in addition to the non-exempt employee’s actual base hourly rate will be paid for 

employees who work on New Year’s Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas (24-hour period beginning 

on the eve of the Holiday.)  A premium of 50% in addition to the non-exempt employee’s actual base 

hourly rate will be paid for employees who work President’s Day, Memorial Day, Fourth of July, 

Veteran’s Day, and Labor Day (24-hour period beginning on the eve of the Holiday.)   

 

Exempt Staff 

 

Exempt employees are not eligible for Holiday premium pay.  Exempt employees working in a secondary 

job code on a Holiday must have preapproval from their respective Vice President (VP).  If approved to 

work the holiday by the VP, the exempt employees working in their secondary job code will receive 

Holiday premium pay. 

 

DESIGNATION OF HOLIDAY 

 

1. If the Holiday falls on a Saturday, the Hospital will designate the preceding Friday as the day to 

observe the Holiday for staff who are scheduled Monday through Friday. 

 

2. If the Holiday falls on a Sunday, the Hospital will designate the following Monday as the day to 

observe the Holiday for staff who are scheduled Monday through Friday.  

19



  Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

HOLIDAY PAY 

SECTION:   

Human Resources 

Page 2 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

 

3. Holiday pay is deducted from the Vacation/Holiday accrual hours and shall conform to 

procedures referenced by the “Vacation/Holiday” policy.   Employees are not eligible to utilize 

Vacation/Holiday time within 90-days of hire. 

 

4. For those employees working  12-hours on a night shift , the holiday shall begin with the 6:45PM 

shift scheduled on the preceding day before the holiday and end twenty-four hours later at 

7:15PM.   

 

For all other employees, the holiday shall begin with the 11:00PM shift scheduled on the                    

preceding day before the holiday and end twenty-four hours later at 10:59PM. 

 

5. Holiday pay shall be limited exclusively to the twenty-four hour period as defined above. 

 

6. Employees called back on any of the paid holidays will be eligible for both holiday and Call-Back 

pay.  

 

7. Exempt employees within their 90-day introductory period will not be eligible to receive holiday 

pay if they choose to not work on the designated holiday.  Exempt staff should report to work on 

the holiday to avoid a deduction in pay.  For greater detail, please refer to the policies Exempt 

Employee Compensation and Vacation/Holiday policy.)   

 

9. If a non-exempt employee within his/her 90-day introductory period is not scheduled to work, 

he/she will not be paid due to his/her inability to utilize Vacation/Holiday under the 

Vacation/Holiday policy.  If a non-exempt employee receives authorization from his/her Director 

to work on a holiday, he or she will be paid as designated in this policy for premium pay.   

 

10. Department Directors are responsible for scheduling employees who will be required to work on 

a designated Holiday, closing the department and/or reducing staff scheduled to work. 

 

CROSS REFERENCES: 

  

 On-Call/Call Back Policy  

 Vacation/Holiday Policy 

 Exempt Employee Compensation 

 

 

20

file://///ISDNT5/Misc/Policy%20and%20Procedure%20Committee/Cross%20Referenced%20Policies/On-Call%20Call%20Back.pdf
file://///ISDNT5/Misc/Policy%20and%20Procedure%20Committee/Cross%20Referenced%20Policies/VACATION%20HOLIDAY%20LEAVE.pdf
file://///ISDNT5/Misc/Policy%20and%20Procedure%20Committee/Cross%20Referenced%20Policies/EXEMPT%20EMPLOYEE%20COMPENSATION%20(6946_-1).docx


 Employee Health Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

SECTION:   

Safety Management 

Page 1 of 6 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To prevent injuries, illnesses and accidents within the facility.  To ensure the safety and health of all 

personnel and to provide a safe and healthful work environment. 

 

POLICY: 

 

It is the policy of Sierra View Medical Center (SVMC) that the personal safety of each employee is of 

primary importance.  Prevention of occupationally-induced injuries and illness of such consequence is 

that it will be given precedence over operations, whenever necessary. To the greatest degree possible, 

management will provide all mechanical and physical activities required for personal safety and health, in 

keeping with the highest standards. 

 

We will maintain a safety and health program conforming to the best practices available.  To be 

successful, such a program must embody proper attitudes toward injury and illness prevention on the part 

of the supervisors and employees. It also requires cooperation for all safety and health matters; not only 

between supervisors and employees, but also between each employee and his or her co-workers.  Only 

through such a cooperative effort can a safety program in the best interest of all be established and 

pursued. 

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS:  GOVERNING BOARD, MEDICAL STAFF, ALL HOSPITAL 

EMPLOYEES, VOLUNTEERS, VENDORS 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

OBJECTIVES: 

 

1. To identify and assign responsibilities to the person(s) to implement the program. 

 

2. To provide means to identify and evaluate occupational safety and health hazards through 

periodic scheduled inspections and investigations of occupational injuries and illnesses. 

 

3. To institute methods for timely correction of unsafe conditions detected based on severity of the 

hazard. 

 

4. To provide safety training to current, new, and reassigned personnel. 

 

5. To provide a system for communicating with employees on safety matters by clearly indicating 

how compliance with safe work practices will be ensured. 

 

6. To encourage employees to participate in reporting unsafe conditions without fear of reprisal. 

 

7. To coordinate the functions of this program with an Employee Health Program, the Infection 

Control Program, and Risk Management through the Safety Management Program. 

 

 

21



 Employee Health Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

SECTION:   

Safety Management 

Page 2 of 6 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

AUTHORITY: 

 

1. The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the Board of Directors (BOD) of Sierra View Medical 

Center are responsible for providing the financial support necessary for specific services, 

equipment and personnel required to maintain the Injury/Illness Prevention Program. 

 

2. The Sierra View Medical Center Chief Executive Officer (CEO) delegates the management and 

implementation of the program to the Safety Committee. 
 

3. The Safety Officer is responsible for reviewing all applicable general industry safety orders and 

other safety orders applicable to the operations of this program. 

 

HAZARD SURVEILLANCE/LIFE SAFETY ROUNDS 

SUBJECT:  ACCIDENT, ILLNESS AND INJURY INVESTIGATIONS 

 

It is the policy of the Injury and Illness Prevention Program to establish a protocol for employees to 

follow in the event of a work-related injury or illness and to investigate and correct any significant 

hazards. 

 

PROCEDURES: 

 

1. Any employee who becomes injured or ill on duty must report his or her condition to the 

department manager or supervisor immediately. 

 

2. The Employee or Supervisor must enter an electronic event report. 
 

3. If the supervisor or employee believes that an evaluation by a physician is required, the Employee 

must report to Employee Health during the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. Monday through 

Friday.  After hours and on weekends or holidays, the employee should report to the Emergency 

Department if medical treatment is urgent or necessary. 

 

4. The Manager/Director of the employee’s department will complete a review and action plan in 

the electronic event report. 

 

5. When an employee identifies a hazard, they will report it in the electronic event reporting system. 

 

6. Employee Health will compile reports on occupational injury and illness and report significant 

trends and incidents to the Safety Committee and Management. 

 

7. The Safety Committee, with the assistance and input of Directors and Managers of affected areas 

will investigate the causes of the incidents, make corrective recommendations and carry out 

corrective actions based on reports provided by Employee Health. 

 

 

 

 

22



 Employee Health Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

SECTION:   

Safety Management 

Page 3 of 6 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

SUBJECT:  ACCIDENT INVESTIGATION 

 

Accident investigations will be conducted by trained individuals.  The primary focus will be on 

understanding why the accident or near miss occurred and what actions can be taken to preclude its 

recurrence.  Furthermore, the investigation will be in writing and identify the cause(s) of the accident or 

near miss. 

 

The following questions will be answered during the investigation of an occurrence: 

 

1. WHAT HAPPENED? WHAT NORMALLY HAPPENS? WHAT DOES PROCEDURE 

REQUIRE? (IF APPLICABLE) 

 

The investigation must obtain all the facts surrounding the occurrence.  For example, what caused 

the situation to occur, who was involved; was/were the employee(s) qualified to perform the 

function involved in the accident; were they properly trained; were proper operating procedures 

established for the task involved; were those procedures followed, and if not, why not; does this 

situation exist in other departments; how can it be corrected? 

 

2. WHY DID IT HAPPEN?  

 

The Safety Officer or designee must determine which aspects of the operation or process require 

additional attention.  It is important to note that the purpose here is not to establish blame, but to 

determine what type of constructive action can eliminate the cause(s) of the accident or near miss.  

 

3. HOW WAS THE ORGANIZATION MANAGING THE RISK?  

 

Actions already taken to reduce or eliminate the exposures being investigated will be noted, along 

with those remaining to be addressed.  Any interim or temporary precautions will also be noted.  

Additionally, any pending corrective action or reason for delay will be noted. 

 

JUST CULTURE: 

 

Sierra View Medical Center’s philosophy for building and supporting the culture of patient safety 

includes promoting a fair, just and supportive environment for those employees that self-report 

potential or actual safety risk, hazard events and/or ethical risks. 

COACHING: 

Coaching discussions are recommended for making constructive suggestions to improve 

individual competency or skills where some improvement is required to improve performance, 

and formal discipline may not yet be appropriate. Employee coaching is considered to be 

educational and is not considered to be disciplinary. However, if the employee’s performance 

does not improve following coaching, disciplinary action may result per SVMC policy. 

 

23



 Employee Health Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

SECTION:   

Safety Management 

Page 4 of 6 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

 

 

SUBJECT:  EMPLOYEE TRAINING AND DOCUMENTATION 

 

It is the policy of Sierra View Medical Center to define the requirements and responsibilities for safety 

education and training as means to minimize injuries, illnesses and accidents. 

 

PROCEDURES: 

 

1. Mandatory Education – all Sierra View Medical Center Department Leaders will ensure that their 

employees will complete the E-learning modules specified below: 

 

A. Fire Safety (annually) 

B. Safe Lifting Procedures and Use of Mechanical Aids To Decrease Risk of Injury 

(annually) 

C. Infection Control/Universal Precautions and Blood Borne Pathogen Standard (annually) 

D. Safe Patient Handling 

E. Electrical Safety (annually) 

F. Equipment Safety (annually) 

G. Hazardous Materials and Waste Safety Communication (annually) 

H. Workplace Violence Prevention (annually) 

I. Health and Safety Handbook (annually) 

J. Worker’s Compensation (annually) 

 

2. Departmental Specific Training 

  

A. Department Leaders must orient their employees to any potential occupational hazards 

related to their departments and conduct a refresher orientation at least annually. 

 

B. Department Leaders must in-service employees of new hazards introduced by a change in 

equipment, processes, raw materials, etc. 

 

C. Department Leaders must provide safe work conditions, practices and personal protective 

equipment as a means of minimizing departmental specific hazards. 

 

24



 Employee Health Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

SECTION:   

Safety Management 

Page 5 of 6 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

3. Education Records 

 

Records of all completed education programs are maintained by the employee’s department 

managers and/or the Education Department. 

 

SUBJECT:  EMPLOYER-EMPLOYEE SAFETY COMMUNICATION SYSTEM 

 

It is the policy of Sierra View Medical Center to establish a communication network between staff and 

appropriate administrative contacts regarding any safety concerns. 

 

PROCEDURES: 

 

1. Employee compliance with safe work practices is assessed through his or her annual job 

performance evaluation. 

 

2. Safety rules and information on occupational hazards are communicated  through the following 

means: 

 

A. Annual or as needed 

B. Department’s specific training 

C. Self-study modules 

D. Other means of communication 

3. Employees are encouraged to report safety concerns to their immediate supervisor. 

 

4. Employees are also encouraged to inform the Safety Officer about workplace hazards without 

fear of reprisal or other discrimination. 

 

5. Employees may use the Electronic Reporting System anonymously to report safety concerns or 

workplace hazards. 

 

6. The Safety Officer will discuss and evaluate the Employee Safety Reports on a quarterly basis at 

the Safety Committee meeting. 

 

SUBJECT: GENERAL SAFETY RULES 

 

1. Department Leaders are responsible for maintaining safety standards, developing safety rules, and 

supervising and training personnel in the department standards. 

 

2. Department Leaders are responsible for notifying the Safety Officer in case of any unsafe 

condition or hazard. 

 

25



 Employee Health Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 

SECTION:   

Safety Management 

Page 6 of 6 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

3. All department employees will report defective equipment, unsafe conditions, acts, or safety 

hazards to their supervisor. This may be done using the Electronic Reporting System. 

 

4. Employees will keep all electrical cords clear of passageways.  Electrical extension cords will not 

be used without written approval of Engineering. 

 

5. All equipment and supplies must be properly stored.  All personal electrical appliances will be 

safety inspected by Engineering prior to use. 

 

6. Scissors, knives, pins, razor blades and other sharp instruments must be safely stored and used. 

 

7. All electric machines with heat producing elements must be turned off when not in use. 

 

8. Smoking is prohibited on Hospital property. 

 

9. Rubbish or trash will not be permitted to accumulate. 

 

10. Advise Engineering immediately of improper illumination and ventilation. 

 

11. Furniture and equipment must be arranged to allow passage and access to exits at all times. 

 

12. Minor spills (i.e., water) should be cleaned by the employee who discovers the spill.  This should 

be done immediately.  Major spills will be cleaned by the Environmental Services (EVS) 

Department. Spill kits are available for spills involving hazardous waste. 

 

13. Report all faulty equipment to the Engineering Department and apply “defective-Do Not Use” 

tag. 

 

14. All warning signs will be obeyed.  

 

15. File drawers and cabinet doors should be kept closed when not in use. 

 

16. Suitable clothing will be worn (High heels or jewelry that may catch in machinery will be 

avoided). 

 

REFERENCES: 

 

 The Joint Commission (2024) Hospital accreditation standards. EC.04.01.05 EP1 Joint Commission 

Resources. Oak Brook, IL.  

 

 Occupational Safety and Health. (n.d.). Injury and Illness Prevention Program . Retrieved from 

https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/etools/09-031/. 

 

 Giso. (n.d.). Retrieved from https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3203.html. 

 

 

26

https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/etools/09-031/


    Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

LEAVE OF ABSENCE - ADMINISTRATIVE 

SECTION:   

 

Page 1 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To define the requirements and procedures for Sierra View Medical Center’s Administrative Leave 

process. 

 

POLICY: 

 

Sierra View Medical Center will provide employees with time off for situations as stated below. 

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS: ALL SVMC EMPLOYEES 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

ELIGIBILITY: 

 

This leave applies to all employees who: 

 

 have been placed on leave during severance payment periods 

 are non-exempt and are on leave due to a pending investigation 

 have a license or certification that has lapsed 

 are precluded from working in their current position due to new licensure 

 

BENEFITS 

 

Once an employee is placed on an Administrative Leave, health, dental and vision benefits stop the first 

of the month following an absence of earnings from which to deduct benefit premiums, or more than 14 

days has passed since the Administrative Leave began. In some circumstances, such as staff waiting on 

new licensures, the hospital will continue to subsidize benefits. Health insurance is not hospital-subsidized 

while an employee is on Administrative Leave, unless they are within the above guidelines. However, 

employees may continue coverage at full cost through the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act 

(COBRA). The employee will be notified by Human Resources and the SVMC Benefits Administrator. 

 

 Vacation/Holiday time cannot be used during a pending investigation or license expiration. (See 

VAC/HOLIDAY Policy) 

 

 Vacation/Holiday time may be used if the employee is precluded from working due to new licensure.  

 

 The employee’s position may be posted and filled during an Administrative Leave if the employee is 

out for more than 14 days. 

 

Department Directors/Managers must notify Human Resources of any employees that may qualify for 

Administrative Leave.  

 

27



    Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

LEAVE OF ABSENCE - ADMINISTRATIVE 

SECTION:   

 

Page 2 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

Human Resources is responsible for maintaining documentation, completion of the appropriate 

documents, and follow-up with the employee regarding his/her Administrative Leave. 

 

REFERENCES: 

 

 Vacation/Holiday Leave  

 

 

28

file://///ISDNT5/Misc/Policy%20and%20Procedure%20Committee/Cross%20Referenced%20Policies/VACATION%20HOLIDAY%20LEAVE.pdf


    Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

LEAVE OF ABSENCE - CALIFORNIA 

MANDATED 

SECTION:   

 

Page 1 of 5 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To define the requirements and procedures for Sierra View Medical Center (SVMC)’s California’s 

mandated leaves process. 

 

POLICY: 

 

Sierra View Medical Center will provide its employees with time off for situations as stated below. 

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS: ALL ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

ELIGIBILITY: 

 

All regular employees employed by Sierra View Medical Center may be eligible. 

 

REQUESTING A MANDATED LEAVE: 

 

It is the employee's responsibility to obtain prior authorization with his or her Director/Manager regarding 

scheduling of any Mandated Leave. The employee shall give reasonable advance written notice of the 

intention to take time off, unless the advance notice is not feasible. Directors/Managers must notify Human 

Resources of any employees that are absent more than three days, without prior approval, as they may qualify 

for other protected leave of absences (See LEAVE OF ABSENCE - FMLA/CFRA, and LEAVE OF 

ABSENCE - PERSONAL Policies).   

 

If Paid Sick Leave and/or Vacation/Holiday time is available, you must use Paid Sick Leave first then 

Vacation/Holiday time to complete your full schedule.  

 

California Mandated leaves include: 

 

Victims Leave: This unpaid leave provides time off of work to an employee who is a victim or whose 

“family member” is a victim of a qualifying act of violence.. This does not create a right for an employee 

to take unpaid leave that exceeds (12 weeks) the unpaid leave time allowed under, or is in addition to the 

unpaid leave time permitted by the federal Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (29 U.S.C. Sec. 2601 

et seq). Leave may run concurrently with FMLA/CFRA if qualified. Leave taken to assist a family 

member with relocating, securing housing, or arranging for school/childcare may be limited to 5 days. 

Leave taken to assist a family member generally may be limited to 10 days. An employee eligible for 

above leave may request a reasonable accommodation for their own safety at work.  
 

A qualifying act of violence  includes any of the following: 

 

1.  Stalking, domestic violence, or sexual assault. 

 

29

http://svi-ppm/docview/?docid=7368
http://svi-ppm/docview/?docid=7001
http://svi-ppm/docview/?docid=7001


    Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

LEAVE OF ABSENCE - CALIFORNIA 

MANDATED 

SECTION:   

 

Page 2 of 5 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

2.  An act, conduct, or pattern of conduct where an individual, 

 

a. Causes bodily injury or death to another 

b. Exhibits, draw, brandishes, or uses a firearm or other dangerous weapon against 

another 

c. Making a reasonably perceived or actual threat to use of force against another to cause 

physical injury or death 

 
Family Member is defined as employee’s spouse, child, parent, grandparent, sibling, domestic partner, or 

“designated person.” A designated person is someone who is not necessarily related to the employee but 

is associated with them in a way that is similar to a family relationship.  
 
Time off for a qualifying reason includes: 

 

 To attend, obtain, or participate in judicial proceedings including but not limited to complying 

with a subpoena or other court order as a witness 

 To obtain a restraining order including a temporary restraining order 

 To seek medical attention for injuries caused by the crime or abuse. 

 To obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, rape crisis center, or victim 

services organization or agency as a result of the crime or abuse. 

 To obtain psychological counseling or mental health services related to an experience of crime or 

abuse. 

 To participate in safety planning and take other actions to increase safety from future crime or 

abuse, including temporary or permanent relocation, as well as enrolling child in school or 

childcare. 

 To provide care to a “family member.” 
 

An employee must provide a certification when an unscheduled absence occurs within a reasonable 

amount of time. Certification shall be sufficient in the form of any of the following:  

 

 A police report indicating that the employee was a victim.   

 A court order protecting or separating the employee from the perpetrator of the crime or 

abuse, or other evidence from the court or prosecuting attorney that the employee 

appeared in court.  

 Documentation from a licensed medical professional, domestic violence advocate or 

advocate for victims of sexual assault, licensed health care provider, or counselor that the 

employee was undergoing treatment  or receiving services for physical or mental injuries 

or abuse resulting in victimization from the crime or abuse. 

 Any other form of documentation that reasonably verifies that the crime or abuse occurred, 

including but not limited to, a written statement signed by the employee, or an individual acting 

on the employee’s behalf, certifying that the absence is for a purpose authorized under “Victims 

Leave.” 

 

30



    Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

LEAVE OF ABSENCE - CALIFORNIA 

MANDATED 

SECTION:   

 

Page 3 of 5 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

 

 School Activities Leave: Sporting, social, academic, or other activities for which students’ 

attendance or participation is sponsored, organized, or funded in whole or in part by a school or 

school district.  This will also include time off to find childcare, enroll, or re-enroll child(ren) in 

school and participate in activities of a licensed childcare provider.  This unpaid leave provides time 

off for eligible employees with up to 40 hours of leave per year.  However, no more than 8 hours per 

month can be taken to participate in school activities with their children. This monthly limitation does 

not apply, however, if the reason for the leave is due to an emergency. The eligible employee must 

also give reasonable prior notice.  Eligible employees include:  Parents, guardians, grandparents, 

stepparents, foster parents, and persons in Loco Parentis.  If both parents work for SVMC, only one 

(1) must be provided this leave at a time.  Leaders may require proof of event/activity in the form of 

documentation by the school or licensed care provider. 

 

 School Appearance Leave: This unpaid leave provides employees with time off in order to appear at 

school on a child’s behalf with regard to school suspension. An employee who is the parent or 

guardian of a pupil taking time off to appear in the school of a pupil pursuant to a request made under 

Section 48900.0 of the Education Code must give reasonable notice to employer (if able) that he or 

she is requested to appear at the school. The following are covered instances: 
 

o Behavioral or Discipline issues 

o Provider has requested child to be picked up, or has an attendance policy, excluding 

planned holidays, that prohibits the child from attending or requires the child to be picked 

up from the school or child care provider. 

o Closure or unexpected availability of the school or childcare provider (excluding planned 

holidays) 

o A natural disaster (flood, fire, earthquake) 

 

 Volunteer Firefighter, Reserve Peace Officer, and Emergency Rescue Personnel Leave.  This 

unpaid leave permits qualified employee to take unpaid leave to perform emergency duty as a 

volunteer firefighter, emergency rescue personnel, emergency rescue training or reserve peace officer. 

 

 Civil Air Patrol Employment Protection: This unpaid leave permits employees who have been 

employed 90 or more days to take a leave of absence to respond to an emergency operational mission 

of the California Wing of the Civil Air Patrol.  An eligible employee may take up to 10 days per year.  

Leave is limited to three days on any one occasion, but can be extended if authorized by the 

government entity that called for the mission and if SVMC agrees. An employee who takes Civil Air 

Patrol leave will be reinstated to the same position they had prior to commencing leave with 

equivalent seniority status, benefits, pay and other terms and conditions, unless the employer can 

prove the failure to do so was unrelated to the leave. The employee is guaranteed to return to the same 

position. 

 
 Organ & Bone Marrow Donor Leave: Organ donors must be provided a paid leave of absence of 

up to 30 business days in any one-year period. The one year period is measured from the date the 

employee’s leave begins and shall consist of 12 consecutive months. A leave of absence, not 

31



    Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

LEAVE OF ABSENCE - CALIFORNIA 

MANDATED 

SECTION:   

 

Page 4 of 5 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

exceeding five (5) business days in a one-year period, to an employee who is a bone marrow donor. 

An employer shall grant an additional unpaid leave of absence, not exceeding 30 business days in a 

one-year period.  

 
Employees must provide written verification to the employer that the employee IS an organ or 

bone marrow donor and that there is a medical necessity for the donation of the organ or bone 

marrow. An employer may require, as a condition of an employee’s initial receipt of bone 

marrow or organ donation leave, that an employee take up to five days of earned but unused sick 

leave or vacation/holiday that is available to the employee for bone marrow donation and up to 

two weeks of earned but unused sick leave or vacation/holiday, or paid time off for organ 

donation. Bone marrow and organ donation leave shall not be taken concurrently with any leave 

taken pursuant to the federal Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993. Leave may be taken in one 

or more periods, but in no event shall exceed the amount of leave prescribed above.  

 

 Reproductive Loss Leave: Eligible employees may take leave for up to five days when they 

suffer a reproductive loss event, which is the day, or the final day for a multiple day event, of 

one of the following: 

 
Failed adoption, failed surrogacy, Miscarriage, Stillbirth, Unsuccessful assisted reproduction. 

The five days of leave don’t need to be consecutive. Plus, if an employee experiences more than 

one reproductive loss event within a 12-month period, an employee can receive another five days 

of leave. There is a cap on reproductive loss leave of 20 days within a 12-month period.  

Leave must be taken within three months of the reproductive loss event; however, if prior to or 

immediately following a reproductive loss event, an employee is on or chooses to go on leave 

under another leave entitlement (e.g., PDL, CFRA, etc) then the employee may complete their 

reproductive loss leave within three months of the end of the other leave. 

 

Leave is unpaid, but employees can use existing sick leave, or Vacation/Holiday leave that has been 

accrued and available to them. 

 

Employees do not need to provide documentation to certify reproductive loss leave. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

32



    Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

LEAVE OF ABSENCE - CALIFORNIA 

MANDATED 

SECTION:   

 

Page 5 of 5 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

 

CROSS REFERENCES: 

 

 Leave of Absence – Personal  

 

 Leave of Absence – FMLA/CFRA 

  

 Vacation/Holiday Leave  

 

 Paid Sick Leave 

 

REFERENCES: 

 

 California Labor Code. Employment Regulation and Supervision. (2010). 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&tit

le=&part=5.&chapter=&article=.  

 

 California Assembly Bill No. 2992. Chapter 224. (2020). 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billCompareClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB2992&sho

wamends=false. 

 

 California Labor Code. Employment Regulation and Supervision. Article 1: General Occupations. 

230.4.(2015).https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB

&sectionNum=230.4 

 

 California Labor Code. Employment Regulation and Supervision. Article 1: General Occupations 

(230.8).  (2016). 

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=

230.8.  

 

 Government Code section 12945.8- Part of AB 2499-

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB2499 
 

 California Labor Code. Employment Regulations and Supervision. Part 5.5 Organ and Bone Marrow 

Donation (1508-1513) 
 

 Senate Bill No. 848 – Employment: Leave for reproductive loss. 

 
 

33

http://svi-ppm/docview/?docid=7001
http://svi-ppm/docview/?docid=7368
http://svi-ppm/docview/?docid=6071
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=5.&chapter=&article
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&division=2.&title=&part=5.&chapter=&article
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billCompareClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB2992&showamends=false
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billCompareClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200AB2992&showamends=false
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.4
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.4
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.8
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=LAB&sectionNum=230.8
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB2499


 Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

MAXIMUM SALARY GRADES, MEETING OR 

EXCEEDING (LUMP SUM PAYMENTS) 

SECTION:   

 

Human Resources 

 

Page 1 of 1 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To establish a method  for offering compensation for merit to exempt and non-exempt employees who 

have reached the top of their assigned salary pay grade yet continue to achieve performance expectations. 

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS: 

 

ALL HOSPITAL EMPLOYEES 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

Salary pay grades are established for exempt and non-exempt positions and shall contain a grade 

minimum, and maximum.  Each position, both exempt and non-exempt will be indexed within a salary 

pay grade. 

  

Employee’s hourly rate of pay shall not exceed the maximum hourly rate of pay for their pay grade. 

 

Pay grade ranges shall be published annually and distributed to Department Directors, who shall identify 

and advise their employees reaching or approaching the maximum of their salary grade range. 

 

Employees who have reached the  cap or maximum of their position’s  pay grade will be eligible to 

receive a lump sum payment equal to 100% of the merit amount recommended in their annual 

performance review.  The lump sum payment is paid at the time of the performance review and does not  

increase or change the  existing base hourly rate of pay.    

 

Employees approaching the top of their salary pay grade, where the full extent of the recommended merit 

amount is not realized, will be brought to the pay grade  maximum to the fullest extent allowable.  The 

actual base hourly rate of pay is changed to reflect the top of the pay grade not to exceed the maximum 

hourly rate of the pay grade.  The remaining increase amount is then paid as a lump sum payment amount. 

 

To process merit increases and lump sum payments,  the Human Resources Department must receive the 

original employee annual evaluation indicating competencies have been completed and placed in the 

employee’s department competency file and the evaluation score sheet.   

 

CROSS REFERENCES: 

 

 SALARY GRADES AND RANGES  

 

 PERFORMANCE REVIEW PROCESS  

 

 

 

 

 

34

file://///ISDNT5/Misc/SALARY%20GRADES%20AND%20RANGES.pdf
file://///ISDNT5/Misc/PERFORMANCE%20REVIEW%20PROCESS.pdf


 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

RADIOACTIVE WASTE DISPOSAL 

SECTION:   

Hazardous Materials and Waste Mgt 

Page 1 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

POLICY: 

 

All radioactive materials are disposed of in accordance with the Nuclear Regulatory Commission 

regulations. 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

Note: WHEN HANDLING RADIONUCLIDES, WEAR RUBBER GLOVES. 

 

1. Remove all expired radionuclides from the active storage area to the radioactive decay vault. 

 

2. Enter into the indicated log book the date of transfer, the activity transferred, the volume 

transferred and initial the entry. 

 

3. Place all radioactive waste materials such as used syringes, needles, test tubes and other 

contaminated items into containers labeled for such waste. 

 

4. On a daily basis, remove and seal the plastic bags, which contain the radioactive waste from the 

containers, and place in the decay vault. 

 

5. Dispose of the radioactive waste materials in accordance with the instructions given in the 

Nuclear Regulatory Commission regulations. 

 

6. Enter into the designated log book details showing radioactive materials disposed of, the date of 

disposal and the radioactivity present at the time of disposal. 

 

7. Perform the final disposal of all radioactive materials in accordance with the prescribed methods 

given by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission regulations. 

 

8. Enter into the designated log book showing all disposals of radioactive materials, date of disposal, 

radioactivity present and the method used for disposal. 

 

LIQUID WASTE: 

 

1. Liquid waste will be disposed of in the sanitary sewer system only in accordance with Section 

20.303 of 10 Code of Federal Regulation part 20. 

 

2. All unused radioactive liquids will be stored in lead wells located in Nuclear Medicine, until safe 

for disposal. 

 

3. All liquid waste will be monitored with Lab Monitor or Dose Calibrator.  If any radioactivity 

remains: 

 

 Determine amount of activity. 

 

 

35



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

RADIOACTIVE WASTE DISPOSAL 

SECTION:   

Hazardous Materials and Waste Mgt 

Page 2 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

 Enter in log the: 

 

 Date 

 

 Radionuclide 

 

 Activity 

 

 Volume disposed of by sewage 

 

 Remove all radioactive labels and wash containers after liquid has been disposed of. 

 

 Dispose of empty containers with solid waste, as per item 3 below. 

 

4. Mo-99 / Tc - 99m Generators: 

 

 Returned to the manufacturer for disposal. 

 

SOLID WASTE: 

 

1. Solid waste, such as syringes, sponges, liners, test tubes, empty bottles, etc., will be placed in 

bags that will be labeled "Radioactive" and held for decay. 

 

2. When radiation levels have reached background levels, as measured with a low level survey 

meter with shielding removed, remove or obliterate all radiation labels and dispose in normal 

trash to be buried at the landfill. 

 

3. Linens contaminated with radioactivity will be placed in plastic bags and held for decay until no 

radioactivity over background can be detected with a low-level survey meter before sending them 

to the Laundry. 

 

REFERENCES: 

 

 The Joint Commission (2024).  Hospital accreditation standards. EC.02.02.01 Joint Commission 

Resources. Oak Brook, IL.  

 

 10 Code of Federal Regulation, Section 20.303 part 20. https://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-

collections/cfr/. Accessed 2018. 

 

 

 

36



 Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

RECOGNITION - STAFF 

ACHIEVEMENTS/MILESTONES 

SECTION:   

Human Resources 

Page 1 of 3 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To recognize and honor staff member’s professional achievements and milestones which contribute to 

their professional growth while serving at Sierra View Medical Center (SVMC). 

 

POLICY: 

 

Staff members at SVMC obtaining national professional certifications and/or academic degrees from an 

accredited college related to their current position or which supports their future healthcare career goals 

will be recognized for their achievements.   

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS:  

 

FULL TIME EMPLOYEES ONLY  

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

A. Staff members who obtain national professional certifications or a two-year college degree related 

to their area of expertise will be eligible to receive the following recognition from SVMC: 

 

1. Public recognition at the Town Hall Meetings. 

2. Public recognition published on SVMC’s digital communication boards and SVMC’s 

intranet and website pages. 

3. A congratulatory email communication will be sent to SVMC’s User Group from the 

President/CEO. 

4. A congratulatory letter mailed to their home. 

5. Recognition by Department Leader and peers at departmental staff meeting. 

6. Accomplishments published through social media platforms. 

7. Accomplishments published in SVMC’s Annual CEO Report. 

 

B. Staff members who obtain an undergraduate, graduate, or postgraduate college degree, in addition 

to the above-listed items, will also receive the following recognition: 

 

1. A gift commemorating their academic achievements or significant milestone. 

2. Recipient of an “Enjoy the Day on Us” voucher redeemable for one paid day off. 

Note:  The paid day off will be based on the employee’s regular base rate of pay and their 

regularly scheduled shift.   The process for requesting the day off under this program will 

follow the department’s current approval process.  Staffing and operational needs will 

still be considered when accommodating this request.  Voucher will expire twelve 

months from the date issued. 

 

C. To ensure individual privacy and preferences related to public recognition, the Human Resources 

staff will pre-screen all eligible recipients of this program prior to their participation in the public 

announcements or publications.   

 

37



 Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

RECOGNITION - STAFF 

ACHIEVEMENTS/MILESTONES 

SECTION:   

Human Resources 

Page 2 of 3 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

D. To become eligible to receive the rewards under this recognition program, staff members must 

first complete and submit the Recognition Eligibility form, a copy of their certification and/or 

college degree to the Human Resources Department within 60 days of receipt or as soon as is 

reasonably possible.  Any questions related to eligibility for awards in this program will be 

reviewed by the Vice President of Human Resources and the President/CEO for final approval. 

 

E. Staff members submitting other significant milestones outside of certifications or college degrees 

for consideration under this program will be reviewed and approved at the discretion of the Vice 

President of Human Resources and the President/CEO. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

38



 Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

RECOGNITION - STAFF 

ACHIEVEMENTS/MILESTONES 

SECTION:   

Human Resources 

Page 3 of 3 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

APPENDIX: Recognition- Staff Achievements/Milestones  

Recognition Eligibility Form  

 

Recognition-Staff Achievements/Milestones 

Recognition Eligibility Form 

 

Date: ___________________     Employee Name:  ____________________________________   

Department: _____________________________   Position: ____________________________   

Degree or National Certification obtained: __________________________________________ 

 

Is this degree or National Certification related to your current position?           Yes             No 

Please tell us how this degree or National Certification supports your future healthcare career goals? 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Eligibility will be reviewed for approval by HR Manager and/or VP of HR and you will be notified of 

decision via SVMC email. 

Reminder:  you must submit a copy of your certification or degree to Human Resources Department 

within 60 days of receipt or as soon as is reasonably possible.   

 

HR Office Use Only: 

Date received: ______________________ Date reviewed: ___________________________ 

Approved:     Yes      No           By:  ______________________________________ 

Notes: _______________________________________________________________________ 

Date Employee Notified: ___________________ 

 

39



    Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

SCOPE OF SERVICE - FOOD AND NUTRITION 

SECTION:   

 

Page 1 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

The Food and Nutrition Service (FNS) Department demonstrates a consistent endeavor to provide safe, 

healthy, and satisfying food to patients, staff and visitors and deliver optimal patient care within available 

resources and consistent with achievable goals. 

 

POLICY: 

 

The FNS Department of Sierra View Medical Center (SVMC) will be open daily from 0500 to 2100 and 

provide the following services: 

 

1. Patient/Resident Meals – Patients/Residents are provided with three (3) meals a day according to 

their physician’s orders.   

 

2. Nourishment – Patients/Residents are provided with additional nourishment and snacks as 

ordered by the doctors or as deemed appropriate for their nutritional care plan by the dietitian.  A 

variety of juices and light snacks (puddings, crackers, soups, etc.) are also available at the unit’s 

nourishment stations. The FNS Department replenishes snacks daily. 

 

3. Cafe Services – Breakfast, lunch, and dinner meals are available for purchase in the cafe for staff 

and guests. 

 

4. Catered Meals – Catered meals are provided for Board Meetings, Administrative Meetings, 

Medical Staff Meetings, and other hospital functions noted in the CATERING SERVICES 

guidelines upon request and approval.   

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS:  FOOD & NUTRITION SERVICES STAFF 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

1. To serve attractive, satisfying meals prepared under high standards of sanitation and safety. 

 

2. To plan appetizing, well-designed menus that meet the nutritional and therapeutic needs of 

patients/residents in accordance with physicians’ orders. 

 

3. To operate a department that meets and exceeds the standards of federal, state, and local 

regulatory agencies and The Joint Commission. 

 

4. To foster good interdepartmental relations to enhance the overall quality of patient/resident care. 

 

5. To provide continuing in-service education for all FNS employees to increase employee 

understanding of required job tasks and improve overall skills and performance. 

 

6. To offer nutrition consultation and educational services for patients. 

40

https://powerdms.com/docs/1578303


    Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

SCOPE OF SERVICE - FOOD AND NUTRITION 

SECTION:   

 

Page 2 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

 

7. To provide nutrition assessments and develop nutrition care plans for those patients/residents 

requiring nutrition intervention and care. 

 

8. To provide optimum nutrition care while keeping within the prescribed fiscal budget. 

 

Position 

Corresponding Schedule # 

 

Monday – Friday 

 

Weekend 

Director Food & Nutrition Service 0800-1630 On Call 

Clinical Nutrition Manager 0800-1630 On Call 

Clinical Dietitian 0730-1600 0800-1630 /On Call 

Clinical Dietitian 0830-1700  

Food Service Lead - Clerk 0600-1430  

Food Service Lead - #20 1030-2100 1030-2100 

Cook #2 0530-1400 
 

Cook #3 0500-1330 0500-1330 

Cook #4 1030-1900  1030-1900  

Diet Aide #7 0530-1400 0530-1400 

Diet Aide #8 0630-1500 0630-1500 

Diet Aide #9 1230-2100 1230-2100 

Cater/Prep #10 0600-1430 FLEX 0600-1430 

Cafe` Cashier #11 0530-1400 0530-1400 

Cafe` Cashier #14 1130-2000  1130-2000 

Food Service Worker #16 0600-1430 0600-1430 

Food Service Worker #17 0630-1500 0630-1500 

Food Service Worker #18 1230-2100  1230-2100 

Food Service Informatics System Specialist 0700-1530  

Scheduled hours may be periodically updated. Current schedules for all food service positions are 

posted in the kitchen.  

 

REFERENCES: 

 

 California Department of Public Health (2024). Retrieved from https://www.cdph.ca.gov. 

 

 The Joint Commission (2024). Hospital accreditation standards. PC.02.02.03, PC.01.02.01, 

HR.01.06.01. Joint Commission Resources, Oak Brook, IL. 

CROSS REFERENCE: 

 

 CATERING SERVICES  

41

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/
https://powerdms.com/docs/1578303


 Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

SERVICE AWARDS 

SECTION:   

 

Page 1 of 1 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

POLICY: 

 

Recognize and honor employees’ years of service 

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS: ALL EMPLOYEES 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

The Board of Directors recognizes and values the long term commitment from employee service and 

demonstrates appreciation through their annual recognition event.  Employees are recognized at 

designated milestone anniversaries. 

 

AWARDS 

 

Five Year Service pin or approved gift 

Ten Year Pen Set or approved gift 

Fifteen Year Desk Clock or approved gift 

Twenty Year Trophy or approved gift 

Twenty Fifth Year Employee Choice Gift  

Thirtieth Year Employee Choice Gift 

Thirty Fifth Year Employee Choice Gift 

Fortieth Year Employee Choice Gift 

 

Service anniversary dates are the date on which the employee was last hired.  If an employee terminates 

employment and is later rehired, the rehire date is the new service anniversary date. Approved leaves of 

absence do not change the employee’s anniversary date, providing the leave does not exceed one year. 

 

Service anniversary dates and calculation methods mentioned in this policy are for service award 

presentations and influence no other policy or employee standing for benefits. 

 

Responsibility:  
 

Human Resources 

 

REFERENCES: 

 

 The Joint Commission (2019).  Hospital accreditation standards.  Joint Commission Resources. Oak 

Brook, IL. 

 

42



 Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL PAY 

SECTION:   

Human Resources Department 

Page 1 of 1 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To define what constitutes a shift that is eligible for shift differential pay and the compensation process 

associated with those shifts. 

 

POLICY: 

 

To give extra compensation to all full time and part time employees who work on evening and night 

shifts. 

 

Definitions: 

 

1. Evening Shift: 

 

a. 8-hour shift:  2:45 PM to 11:15 PM 

b. 10-hour shift: 12:45 PM to 11:15 PM 

c. 12-hour shift:  10:45 AM to 11:15 PM 

 

2. Night Shift: 

 

a. 8-hour shift:  10:45 PM to 7:15 AM 

b. 10-hour shift: 8:45 PM to 7:15 AM 

c. 12-hour shift:  6:45 PM to 7:15 AM 

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS: ALL FULL TIME & PART TIME SVMC EMPLOYEES 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

1. A shift differential equal to 8% of the employee’s actual base hourly rate will be paid for all hours 

worked on the evening shift. 

 

2. A shift differential equal to 12% of the employee’s actual base hourly rate will be paid for all 

hours worked on the night shift. 

 

3. The shift differential will apply to the entire shift, based on the shift that the majority of the hours 

are worked. 

 

4. The shift differential applies to full and part time classifications of employees only. 

 

5. Shift differentials are calculated using the actual base hourly rate of pay for hours worked. 

 

6. Differentials will not be added to Vacation/Holiday hours. 

43



 Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

TRAINING AND MEETING TIME PAY 

SECTION:   

 

Page 1 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To define the process to provide uniform wage practices for the payment of training and meeting time as 

hours worked. 

 

DEFINITIONS:  

 

 In-Service Training – Required training that is the Hospital’s responsibility to provide to employees 

to comply with licensing regulations. 

 

 Continuing Education Units (CEU’s) – Required training that is the Employee’s responsibility to 

obtain in order to comply with licensing regulations. 

 

POLICY: 

 

Payment of wages by Sierra View Medical Center (SVMC) during training and meeting times will be 

determined based on whether or not the training or meeting is designated as mandatory.  Mandatory 

trainings and meetings are those in which the employee participates as a requirement of their job position 

as determined by their department director or the senior leadership team. 

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS:    ALL NON-EXEMPT EMPLOYEES 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

Not all training or meeting time is required to be paid.  Factors to consider if the training or meeting is 

paid or not are: 

 

 Whether or not it is voluntary.  If SVMC requires the employee to attend the training or meeting, it 

must be paid.  If the employee is voluntarily attending, then it does not need to be paid. 

 

 Whether or not it is the employee’s responsibility to obtain or the Hospital’s responsibility to provide.   

 

a. If it is required as a result of a licensing issue, such as Certified Nurse Aids who require in-

service training to maintain their certification, then it is paid time.   

 

b. If it is required by regulation or licensing, i.e. continuing education units (CEUs), it does not 

need to be paid time as it is viewed as for the benefit of the employee.   

 

c. Training for the benefit of SVMC, such as internal policy training, must be paid. 

 

 Whether or not any other work must be performed at the meeting.  If an employee is asked to perform 

work while they are receiving training or attending a meeting and the work is used by SVMC, it must 

be considered as paid work time. 

 

44



 Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

TRAINING AND MEETING TIME PAY 

SECTION:   

 

Page 2 of 2 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

 Whether or not the training or meeting is held outside of the normal work schedule.  If so, and it is 

voluntary, required by regulation or licensing (please see “b.” above), or no other work must be 

performed, then the time does not need to be paid. 

 

If the mandatory training or meeting is to take place during a time in which the employee is not scheduled 

to work, off-duty employees are required to punch-in at the start of the meeting and punch-out at the end 

of the meeting. Because this time is considered paid work time, employees must follow all SVMC 

policies, including the Dress Code Standards policy, while attending the training or meeting. 

Employees will be paid their regular rate of pay for their attendance at mandatory training or meetings as 

defined above. 

 

For exempt employees, please refer to the Exempt Employee Compensation policy. 

For employees on SVMC Service Teams, please refer to Employee Participation on Service Teams 

policy. 

 

REFERENCES: 

 

 Fair Labor Standards Act 

 

CROSS REFERENCES: 

 

 RECORDING HOURS WORKED  

 DRESS CODE STANDARDS  

 EXEMPT EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION  

 EMPLOYEE PARTICIPATION ON SERVICE TEAMS  

 

 

45

file://///ISDNT5/Misc/RECORDING%20HOURS%20WORKED.pdf
file://///ISDNT5/Misc/DRESS%20CODE%20STANDARDS.pdf
file://///ISDNT5/Misc/EXEMPT%20EMPLOYEE%20COMPENSATION.pdf
file://///ISDNT5/Misc/EMPLOYEE%20PARTICIPATION%20ON%20HOSPITAL%20SERVICE%20TEAMS.pdf


 Human Resources Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

VOTING 

SECTION:   

 

Page 1 of 1 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

To define the process by which SVMC allows employees to vote in public elections. 

 

POLICY: 

 

SVMC encourages employees to vote in public elections.  Responding to public statute, employees are 

permitted time away from work to vote following the guidelines listed below.  Time away from work may 

be withheld when election polling places are open for two (2) consecutive hours before or after the 

employee’s scheduled shift. 

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS: ALL ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

If employees do not have sufficient time outside of working hours due to their work schedule to vote at a 

statewide election, the employee may, without loss of pay, take off enough working time that, when 

added to the voting time available outside of working hours, will enable the employee to vote. 

 

Employees can be given as much time as they need in order to vote, but only a maximum of two hours is 

paid. The time off for voting shall be only at the beginning or end of the regular working shift, whichever 

allows the most free time for voting and the least time off from the regular working shift, unless otherwise 

mutually agreed. 

 

Requests shall be no less than two days (48 hours) in advance of the requested time off.  Requests may be 

denied for scheduling, staffing ratios and patient care concerns when requests are received in less than 48 

hours. 

 

Non-exempt staff may elect Vacation/Holiday time for time off in excess of the two hour period being 

paid for voting purposes. 

 

Staff are encouraged to take advantage of absentee voting opportunities. 

 

It is the responsibility of the Department Directors to comply with this policy. 

 

No employee is to be threatened or disciplined when complying with this policy and voting.  Time taken 

off to vote is to be reported using our timekeeping system under pay code “VOTING”.  

 

REFERENCE: 

 California Elections Code Sec. § 14000. (n.d.). Retrieved October 06, 2020, from 

https://california.public.law/codes/ca_elec_code_section_14000.  

46

https://california.public.law/codes/ca_elec_code_section_14000


 Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

FOOD SERVICE EMERGENCY PLAN 

 

SECTION:   

Emergency Management Plan 

 1 of 11 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 
PURPOSE:   

 

Sierra View Medical Center (SVMC) will have the means to provide nutritional assistance to staff and 

patients for ninety six (96) hours in the event of a disaster or emergency situation. 

 

DEFINITIONS:    

 

Emergency: An ‘unexpected or sudden event that significantly disrupts the organization's ability to 

provide care, or the environment of care itself, or that results in sudden, significantly changed or 

increased demand for the organization’s services.’ 

 

POLICY:   
 
The facility maintains at least a seven days staple and two days perishable foods in inventory.  In addition 

the facility maintains four days (96 hour) emergency meals, potable water and disposable supplies in the 

facility’s secured, temperature-controlled warehouse. 

 
A Nutrition Service disaster and emergency plan is prominently posted in the food service department and 

reviewed by all department employees at least annually. This plan will be referred to when the facility 

experiences a loss of water supply, electricity, natural gas, or experiences an emergency/disaster. It is 

possible that any one or all of these services may be interrupted. 

 

The Food & Nutrition Service Director or Dietitian or Food Service staff member in charge will consult 

with the House Supervisor or Administrator to determine the nature of the emergency and the anticipated 

duration. 

 

If needed, all or part of this emergency meal plan will be implemented to ensure provision of nutritious 

meals to patients despite the limitations of the disaster. The Meals for All Emergency Solution menu may 

be used during an emergency/disaster at the discretion of the Food & Nutrition Service Department, 

House Supervisor or Administration.  In the event the emergency/disaster is anticipated to last beyond one 

meal, the Registered Dietitian will be notified.   

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS: GOVERNING BOARD; MEDICAL STAFF; ALL HOSPITAL 

EMPLOYEES; VOLUNTEERS 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

At least once a year, the Food & Nutrition Department conducts an in-service session on disaster plans 

and emergency procedures in regards to the nutritional assistance that will be provided to patients. The 

Quick Guide to Emergency Feeding guidelines will be posted in food service and the house supervisor 

office.  A copy of the disaster and emergency procedures will be stored with the Meals for All emergency 

food and supplies ready reference.  (See attachment I - Quick Guide to Emergency Feeding Guidelines) 

 

HEATING SOURCE FOR WATER: 

 

47



 Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

FOOD SERVICE EMERGENCY PLAN 

 

SECTION:   

Emergency Management Plan 

 2 of 11 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 
If no heating source is available, Meals for All may be reconstituted using unheated potable water.  All 

food items are fully cooked and safe to serve at room temperature.   

 

Do not attempt to cook or boil water over an open flame whenever gas leaks are possible. 

 

FOOD TEMPERATURES / FOOD SAFETY: 

 

For best palatability, hot foods are best served at 135°F or more, cold foods are best served at 41° or 

colder. However, all foods on this menu may be safely served at room temperature between 41° - 135° if 

opened, prepared and served within two hours.   

 

HANDWASHING FOR FOOD PREPARERS: 

 

Proper hand washing when water is scarce requires the use of two basins, one with an approved sanitizing 

agent, and one with clear rinsing water.  Approved hand sanitizer may also be utilized. 

 

FOOD PREPARATION: 

 

Follow instructions on the Meals for All containers for proper preparation.  See attachment II 

 

EMERGENCY FOOD ITEMS STORAGE: 

 

The Meals for All emergency meals and other emergency supplies will be secured in the facility storage 

warehouse and easily accessible during an emergency or disaster situation. All food items are dated by the 

manufacturer and have a ten year shelf life. During the final year of the expected shelf-life, SVMC will 

determine if the facility will donate the Meals for All to a charitable organization or utilize for a facility 

disaster exercise. 

 

EQUIPMENT FOR FOOD PREPARATION: 

 

The equipment needed for food preparation is secured and stored in the facility storage warehouse in the 

Food Preparation Tool Box. The equipment is in its own marked container and located next to the Meals 

for All pallets. The equipment toolbox includes but not limited to: 

 

 4 gray scoops (4oz), 4 green scoops (3oz), 4 spoodles (4oz), 2 serving spoons, 2 slotted serving 

spoons, 4 ladles (3oz), 2 rubber spatulas, 4 tongs,  2 sets measuring spoons, 2 measuring cups, 4 

mixing bowls, 2 containers (12 quart), disposable aluminum pans, 2 spot lights, 6 headlamps; 3 

lanterns, 10 flashlights, 72 (D) batteries, disposable gloves, 2 can openers, 4 thermometers, 2 boxes 

storage bags, 2 boxes hairnets, 2 box cutters & extra blades, black markers, 2 scissors, 2 lighters, 

masking tape 72 (D) batteries, 2 boxes storage bags, 2 cases disinfectant wipes, 2 boxes alcohol 

wipes, 4 bottles hand sanitizer, black markers, 2 scissors, 2 lighters, masking tape , garbage bags. 

 

INVENTORY AND VERIFICATION: 

 

The Meals for All Emergency Menu Inventory and Supply list will be maintained in the Food & Nutrition 

Service Director’s Office, and a copy will be placed in the Emergency Operations Procedures manual. 

48



 Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

FOOD SERVICE EMERGENCY PLAN 

 

SECTION:   

Emergency Management Plan 

 3 of 11 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 
The inventory and supply list will be inspected on a semi-annual basis to determine all items are present 

in the quantities specified.  The Emergency Supply Inventory Verification form (attached) will be utilized 

for documenting the inventory, which will include: 

 

 Date of inventory check. 

 Results of the inventory. 

 Corrective action if needed. 

 Signature of person performing the supply inventory. 

 

The Emergency Supply Inventory Verification form will be kept in the Director of Food & Nutrition 

office and available upon request.  (See attachment IV: Inventory Verification form.) 

 

DECENTRALIZED FOOD PREPARATION: 

 

The Food & Nutrition Service Director or designee in charge may designate some or all of the emergency 

food preparation to be conducted at a decentralized location or on each nursing unit or at a remote 

locations from the facility. The Meals for All are packaged to be easily transportable in the event of an 

evacuation and can be set up in any decentralized location. 

 

MEAL SERVING HOURS: 

 

The meal serving hours for the Meals for All will be modified or staggered depending on the emergent 

situation and will be determined by the Incident Commander, Food & Nutrition Service Director, or 

designee.  The necessary amount of batch cooking to prepare in order to serve in large quantities to the 

patients and staff members will be taken into consideration. The meals may be served tableside to 

facilitate having a limited staff to efficiently prepare and serve during an emergency situation. If 

emergency circumstances warrant, the meals may be served directly from the cooking container directly 

to the patient / staff.  

 

USE OF EMERGENCY MENUS: 

 

Depending on the time of day and expected duration of the emergency, the Food & Nutrition Service 

Director or designee may implement the Meals for All emergency menus and may be used for a single 

meal or for several days.  (See attachment III - 4 Day Emergency Menu.) 

 

MENUS AND THERAPEUTIC DIETS: 

 

The Meals for All menus have been planned to provide basic nutrients and meet the needs of most 

therapeutic healthcare diets. The Meals for All menu and products have been specially prepared to allow 

their use for most healthcare therapeutic diets. The therapeutic menu is appropriate for Regular, 

Mechanical Soft, Cardiac, Sodium Restricted, Diabetic and Renal diets. Specific Therapeutic Diet 

modifications are as follows: 

 

 Consistent Carbohydrate, Diabetic Gestational Diabetes and Low/No concentrated Sweets Diets may 

be served all menu items except the pudding. Offer sugar substitute and diet jelly, if available. 

 

49



 Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

FOOD SERVICE EMERGENCY PLAN 

 

SECTION:   

Emergency Management Plan 

 4 of 11 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 
 Low Cholesterol/ Low Fat Diets may be served on all menu items. 

 

 No Added Salt/Low Salt Diets may be served on all menu items, but the salt packets are omitted. 

 

 2 Gram Sodium Diets may be served on all menu items, but the salt packets are omitted. 

 

 Calorie Controlled diets, 1500 Calorie or less, and Consistent Carbohydrate or Diabetic Diets may be 

served on all menu items except portions of milk, cracker-biscuits and snacks are reduced and the 

puddings are omitted. Offer sugar substitute and diet jelly if available. 

 

 Renal and Hepatic Diets may be served on all menu items except the milk, pudding and salt packets 

are omitted. Limit beverages if fluid restriction is prescribed. 

 

 Resident’s allergies will be accommodated by knowledgeable staff by offering suitable foods from 

the Meals for All Emergency menu. Diets may be deficient in one or more nutrients.  

 

 Powdered milk is included in the Meals for All to meet nutritional needs. 

 

Clear Liquid Diets shall receive broth, gelatin, and clear soda stocked on the nursing units. Nutritional 

supplements may be ordered to increase calories and nutrient values. 

 

BEVERAGES / CONDIMENTS: 

 

Beverages will be provided as requested or available during an emergency situation. Patients needing 

thickened liquids will be served beverages thickened to the appropriate level. Substitute dehydrated milk 

mixed with water for fluid milk if needed. Condiments such as salt, pepper and sugar are made available 

when possible and not contraindicated by the prescribed diet order. Consistent Carbohydrate or Diabetics 

shall receive sugar substitute. Sodium-Restricted, Hepatic and Renal diets will not receive salt packets. 

 

WATER STORAGE GUIDELINES: 

 

The facility will maintain designated emergency water in SVMC’s  secured, temperature controlled 

warehouse. The water will be stored in a cool, dry area, away from heat sources, and staff will be 

instructed not to utilize it for any other purpose except an emergency situation.   One gallon of water per 

person per day for proper hydration will be stored.  This allows two quarts for drinking water and two 

quarts for food preparation.  However, Meals for All dehydrated emergency foods require approximately 

one quart of water per person per day for reconstitution.  Refer to Water Requirements Appendix in 4- 

Day Meal Plan Guide for water requirements table for exact amounts of water per can.  Storing one 

gallon of water per person per day is adequate to meet emergency water needs. 

 

Although the bottled water packaging may indicate an expiration date, the United States Food and Drug 

Administration (FDA), which regulates bottled water as a packaged food, has determined that there is no 

limit to the shelf life of bottled water.    

 

 

50



 Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

FOOD SERVICE EMERGENCY PLAN 

 

SECTION:   

Emergency Management Plan 

 5 of 11 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

MEAL / WATER ALLOCATION 

 DAY 1  DAY 2  DAY 3  DAY 4 

Patients 165 Patients 165 Patients 165 Patients 165 

Staff / Physicians 400 

Staff / 

Physicians 400 

Staff / 

Physicians 400 Staff / Physicians 400 

EMS / Visitors 85 EMS / Visitors 85 EMS / Visitors 85 EMS / Visitors 85 

Water (gallons)  650 Water gallons)  650 Water gallons)  650 Water (gallons)  650 

        A MINIMUM OF 1 GALLON PER PERSON PER DAY ON SITE. 

   A MINIMUM OF 2600 GALLONS STORED ON SITE. 

     

       Meals for All  

   Day 1 26 cases (each case feeds 25 with 3 meals, milk and snack)  1950 (650 x 3 meals) 

Day 2 26 cases (each case feeds 25 with 3 meals, milk and snack)  1950 (650 x 3 meals) 

Day 3 26 cases (each case feeds 25 with 3 meals, milk and snack)  1950 (650 x 3 meals) 

Day 4 26 cases (each case feeds 25 with 3 meals, milk and snack)  1950 (650 x 3 meals) 

 
       Emergency Tool Box 

     Disposables / Dry Supplies 

      

 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

 

 Attachment I:   Quick Guide to Emergency Feeding 

 Attachment II:    Meal Preparation 

 Attachment III:  Four Day Emergency Meal Menu 

 Attachment IV:  Inventory Verification Form 

 

 

51



 Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

FOOD SERVICE EMERGENCY PLAN 

 

SECTION:   

Emergency Management Plan 

 6 of 11 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 
REFERENCES: 

 

 GACH Title 22 Regulations: Article 3: § 70277 (b) Food Supplies. (1) At least one week's supply of 

staple foods and at least two (2) days’ supply of perishable foods shall be maintained on the 

premises. Supplies shall be appropriate to meet the requirements of the menu. 

 

 Title 22 – Section 70741 further specifies that each hospital shall have a disaster and mass 

casualty program that includes provisions for the availability of adequate basic utilities and 

supplies, including gas, water, food, and essential medical and supportive materials. As each 

hospital’s services and situation are different, the definition of adequate is subject to those 

differences 

 

 CMS - Emergency Preparedness (EP) Tags https://www.cms.gov/medicare/provider-enrollment-

and%20certification/surveycertemergprep/emergency-prep-rule  

• EP Tags 0001, 0004, 0006, 0007, 0009 Emergency Preparedness (EP) Program 

• EP Tags 0013 Policies and Procedures 

• EP Tag 0015 Subsistence needs for staff and patients 

• EP Tag 0036 EP Training and Testing 

• EP Tag 0037 EP Training Program 

• EP Tag 0041 Emergency Power 

 

 International Bottled Water Association (2021). Retrieved from 
https://www.bottledwater.org/education/bottled-water-storage.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

52

https://www.cms.gov/medicare/provider-enrollment-and%20certification/surveycertemergprep/emergency-prep-rule
https://www.cms.gov/medicare/provider-enrollment-and%20certification/surveycertemergprep/emergency-prep-rule
https://www.bottledwater.org/education/bottled-water-storage


 Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

FOOD SERVICE EMERGENCY PLAN 

 

SECTION:   

Emergency Management Plan 

 7 of 11 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 
 

 

 

ATTACHMENT I 

QUICK GUIDE TO EMERGENCY FEEDING 

 

1. Notify Food & Nutrition Service Director or Clinical Nutritional Manager using the emergency call 

back list or appoint an alternate to be in charge.  

 

2. Determine nature of emergency or interruption:  

 

 ELECTRICITY - Continue usual meal plan, modify as needed. May substitute Meals for All as 

needed.  
 

 NATURAL GAS - Use alternate heating source if safe. Continue usual meal plan, modify as 

needed. May substitute Meals for All as needed.  
 

 WATER SUPPLY - Affects ware washing and cooking, so conserve water and liquids. Continue 

usual meal plan, modify as needed. May substitute Meals for All as needed.  
 

 NO POWER OR WATER - Use alternate heating source if safe. Affects ware washing and 

cooking, so conserve water and liquids. Substitute Meals for All as needed.  

 

3. SELECT MENU PLAN TO FOLLOW:  

 

 Usual menu with needed adaptations (uses perishable supplies first)  

 

 Meals for All emergency solution.  

 

4. DIET MODIFICATIONS: Refer to usual menu, if using. 

  

 Follow “Emergency Menu Serving Instructions” when using Meals for All.  

 

 Be aware of those with food allergies.  

 

 Modify texture for chewing/swallow needs (e.g. mince or mash foods, serve thickened liquids.)  

 

5. LOCATE NEEDED ITEMS:  

 

 Emergency procedures and menus are posted in Nutrition/Food/Dietary Department, Emergency 

food storage area, and House Supervisor’s office.  

 

 Emergency food supplies are located at the SVMC warehouse. 

 

 Emergency disposable supplies are located at the SVMC warehouse.  

 

 Preparation supplies are located in emergency toolbox at the SVMC warehouse.  

53



 Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

FOOD SERVICE EMERGENCY PLAN 

 

SECTION:   

Emergency Management Plan 

 8 of 11 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 
 

 Water supply is located at the SVMC warehouse.                   
 

ATTACHMENT II 

 

MEAL PREPARATION 

 

Refer to the label on each product for specific instructions.  

 

General Instructions for Hot Foods:  

 

1. Open can and discard oxygen absorber* packet.  

2. Boil water amount as directed, OR mix with room temperature water if there is no heating source. 

3. Stir dry contents of can or cans into boiling water. 

4. Cover and remove from heat.  

5. Allow to stand for 15 minutes for boiling water, 1 hour if room temperature water utilized. 

6. Stir and serve 1 1/3 cup (2 x No. 6 Scoop) or as directed 

 

Instructions for Ready to Eat Items (Fruit, Vegetables, Crackers):  

 

1. Remove oxygen absorber* packet.  

2. Ready to eat from packaging.  

3. If desired, rehydrate as above using cold water for fruit.  

 

Instructions for Pudding Preparation:  

 

1. Open can and discard oxygen absorber* packet.  

2. Stir dry contents of one can into cold water, amount as directed.  

3. Whisk thoroughly to mix. Allow to stand for 15 minutes.  

4. Stir and serve #8 scoop for ½ cup or as directed.  

 

Non-Fat Milk, to prepare:  

 

1. Add water as directed on label, allow to stand 15 minutes, stir and serve 8 ounces or as directed.  

 

Notes:  

 

 Food Safety Note: Food should be consumed within 2 hours of preparation unless maintained at 

135° or higher or below 41° for cold foods.  

 No heating methods: Allow 1 hour to rehydrate when using cold or room temperature water.  

 Product shelf life is ten years when properly stored in a cool, dry environment.  

 

*Contains a non-toxic oxygen  

     

 

 

54



 Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

FOOD SERVICE EMERGENCY PLAN 

 

SECTION:   

Emergency Management Plan 

 9 of 11 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 
 

 

 

ATTACHMENT III 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                 MEALS FOR ALL EMERGENCY MENU FOUR DAY 

DAY ONE DAY TWO DAY THREE DAY FOUR VEGETARIAN 

BREAKFAST 

Apple Cereal, 

Fortified 

Apple Cereal, 

Fortified 

Apple Cereal, 

Fortified 

Apple Cereal, 

Fortified 

Apple Cereal, 

Fortified 

Cracker-Biscuits  Cracker-

Biscuits 

Cracker-Biscuits  Cracker-

Biscuits  

Cracker-Biscuits  

Milk (NFDM) Milk (NFDM) Milk (NFDM) Milk (NFDM) Milk (NFDM) 

MID-MEAL 

Beef & Mushrooms 

with Noodles 

Turkey & 

Potatoes with 

Cranberries 

Southwestern 

Style Chicken & 

Rice 

Sweet Asian 

Style Chicken 

with Rice 

Spaghetti with 

Mushrooms 

Green Peas Corn Niblets Green Beans Garden Mixed 

Vegetables 

Vegetable* 

Apples Diced Peaches Diced Applesauce Peaches Diced Fruit* 

Cracker-Biscuits Cracker-

Biscuits 

Cracker-Biscuits Cracker-

Biscuits 

Cracker-Biscuits 

Milk (NFDM) Milk (NFDM) Milk (NFDM) Milk (NFDM) Milk (NFDM) 

DINNER 

Sweet Asian Style 

Chicken with Rice 

Spaghetti with 

Mushrooms 

Beef Stew with 

Potatoes & 

Gravy 

Macaroni & 

Cheese 

Macaroni & 

Cheese 

Carrots Garden Mixed 

Vegetables 

Broccoli Green Peas Vegetable* 

Cracker-Biscuits Cracker-

Biscuits 

Cracker-Biscuits Cracker-

Biscuits 

Cracker-Biscuits 

Chocolate Pudding Banana 

Pudding 

Vanilla Pudding Banana 

Pudding 

Pudding* 

Beverage Beverage Beverage Beverage Beverage 

SNACK 

Peanut Butter and 

Crackers 

Peanut Butter 

and Crackers 

Peanut Butter 

and Crackers 

Peanut Butter 

and Crackers 

Peanut Butter 

and Crackers 

55



 Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

FOOD SERVICE EMERGENCY PLAN 

 

SECTION:   

Emergency Management Plan 

 10 of 11 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 
 

 

 

 

   

ATTACHMENT IV 

25 Person Serving Unit 

Inventory List (Four Day Emergency Menu) 

Case 

Number Day Meal 4-Day Emergency Menu items 

Servings 

Per Can 

Number of 

Cases in 

Inventory 

1-A 

1 Breakfast Apple Cereal, Fortified 25 

 25 

1 Breakfast Cracker-Biscuits 25 

1 Mid-meal Beef & Mushrooms with Noodles 12.5 

1 Mid-meal Beef & Mushrooms with Noodles 12.5 

1 Mid-meal Green Peas 25 

1 Mid-meal Apples, Diced 25 

1-B 

1 Mid-meal Cracker-Biscuits 25 

 25 

1 Evening Sweet Asian Style Chicken with Rice 12.5 

1 Evening Sweet Asian Style Chicken with Rice 12.5 

1 Evening Carrots 25 

1 Evening Cracker-Biscuits 25 

1 Evening Chocolate Pudding 25 

2-A 

2 Breakfast Apple Cereal, Fortified 25 

25  

2 Breakfast Cracker-Biscuits 25 

2 Mid-meal Turkey & Potatoes with Cranberries 12.5 

2 Mid-meal Turkey & Potatoes with Cranberries 12.5 

56



 Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

FOOD SERVICE EMERGENCY PLAN 

 

SECTION:   

Emergency Management Plan 

 11 of 11 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 
2 Mid-meal Corn  25 

2 Mid-meal Peaches, Diced 25 

      

2-B 

2 Mid-meal Cracker-Biscuits 25 

25  

2 Evening Spaghetti & Mushrooms 12.5 

2 Evening Spaghetti & Mushrooms 12.5 

2 Evening Garden Mixed Vegetables 25 

2 Evening Cracker-Biscuits 25 

2 Evening Banana Pudding 25 

3-A 

3 Breakfast Apple Cereal, Fortified 25 

 25 

3 Breakfast Cracker-Biscuits 25 

3 Mid-meal Southwestern Style Chicken & Rice 12.5 

3 Mid-meal Southwestern Style Chicken & Rice 12.5 

3 Mid-meal Green Beans 25 

3 Mid-meal Applesauce 25 

3-B 

3 Mid-meal Cracker-Biscuits 25 

25  

3 Evening Beef Stew with Potatoes & Gravy 12.5 

3 Evening Beef Stew with Potatoes & Gravy 12.5 

3 Evening Broccoli 25 

3 Evening Cracker-Biscuits 25 

3 Evening Vanilla Pudding 25 

4-A 

4 Breakfast Apple Cereal, Fortified 25 

25  4 Breakfast Cracker-Biscuits 25 

57



 Food & Nutrition Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

FOOD SERVICE EMERGENCY PLAN 

 

SECTION:   

Emergency Management Plan 

 12 of 11 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 
4 Mid-meal Sweet Asian Style Chicken with Rice 12.5 

4 Mid-meal Sweet Asian Style Chicken with Rice 12.5 

4 Mid-meal Garden Mixed Vegetables 25 

4 Mid-meal Peaches, Diced 25 

4-B 

4 Mid-meal Apple Cereal, Fortified 25 

25  

4 Evening Macaroni & Cheese 12.5 

4 Evening Macaroni & Cheese 12.5 

4 Evening Green Peas 25 

4 Evening Cracker-Biscuits 25 

4 Evening Banana Pudding 25 

M
il

k
 

1 B'fast & Mid-Meal Non Fat Dry Milk 50 incl 1A/1B 

2 B'fast & Mid-Meal Non Fat Dry Milk 50 incl 2A/2B 

3 B'fast & Mid-Meal Non Fat Dry Milk 50 incl 3A/3B 

4 B'fast & Mid-Meal Non Fat Dry Milk 50 incl 4A/4B 

S
n

a
ck

 

1 Snack Peanut Butter 25 

incl 1A/1B 1 Snack Cracker-Biscuits 25 

2 Snack Peanut Butter 25 

incl 2A/2B 2 Snack Cracker-Biscuits 25 

3 Snack Peanut Butter 25 

incl 3A/3B 3 Snack Cracker-Biscuits 25 

S
n

a
ck

 4 Snack Peanut Butter 25 

incl 4A/4B 4 Snack Cracker-Biscuits 25 

EXPIRATION DATE: 
June 

2034 
 

58



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 1 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

PURPOSE: 

 

Violence is occurring all throughout the world and over time has filtered into the workplace. Overall, 

violent assaults remain fairly rare, although healthcare workers may be at higher risk for attacks compared 

to other professions. With this in mind, Sierra View Medical Center (SVMC) is committed to providing a 

work environment that is safe, and every effort is made to reduce or eliminate threats or acts of workplace 

violence.  

 

In late 2016, the Cal/OSHA Standards Board adopted SB 1299, a new health care workplace violence 

prevention regulation. The first phase of the regulation went into effect on April 1, 2017 related to 

reporting requirements and recordkeeping, followed by the final phase that became fully effective April 1, 

2018. The Workplace Violence Prevention Plan, assessments of the workplace, hazards identified, 

corrective measures put into place, and staff training was implemented by the 2018 due date. 

 

The Workplace Violence Prevention Plan (WVPP) is part of the organization’s Injury and Illness 

Prevention Plan (IIPP). The WVPP is in effect at all times in every unit (including Outpatient areas), 

services and operations. 

 

Key Elements of the WVPP include: 

 

1. Identifying management positions with the responsibility for administering the WVPP 

 

2. Coordination with other employers of employees (contractors, registries, vendors) regularly 

working at SVMC 

 

3. Identifying and evaluating safety and security risks 

 

4. Investigating acts of violence/violent incidents 

 

5. Hazards corrections/mitigations 

 

6. Communication plan with employees and others 

 

7. Designing, coordinating and implementing the training 

 

8. Incident reporting by employees, contracted labor, registries, and regularly on-site vendors 

 

9. Incident reporting to Cal/OSHA, Law Enforcement and the California Department of Public 

Health (CDPH) 

 

10. Recordkeeping/Incident Log 

 

11. Annual Program Review 

 

 

 

59



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 2 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

 

A.  DEFINITIONS:  

 

1. Workplace Violence:  Any act of violence, threat of violence or aggressive behavior that 

occurs in the work setting. The term workplace violence shall not include lawful acts of 

self-defense or defense of others. Workplace violence includes the following: 

 

a. The threat or use of physical force against an employee that results in, or has a 

high likelihood of resulting in, injury, psychological trauma, or stress, regardless 

of whether the employee sustains an injury; 

 

b. An incident involving the threat or use of a firearm or other dangerous weapon, 

including the use of common objects as weapons, regardless of whether the 

employee sustains an injury; 

 

c. Examples of violent acts may include, but are not limited to, assault, battery, 

beatings, stabbings, shooting, rape, psychological traumas, threatening or 

obscene phone calls, stalking, being sworn or shouted at, intimidation, or 

harassment of any kind 

 

d. Threat of violence means a statement or conduct that causes a person to fear for 

his or her safety because there is a reasonable possibility the person might be 

physically injured, and that serves no legitimate purpose. 

 

2. Four workplace violence types: 

 

a. “Type 1 violence” means workplace violence committed by a person who has no 

legitimate business in the worksite, and includes violent acts by anyone who 

enters the workplace with the intent to commit a crime 

 

b. “Type 2 violence” means workplace violence directed at employees by 

customers, clients, patients, students, inmates, or any other for whom an 

organization provides services 

 

c. “Type 3 violence” means workplace violence against an employee by a present 

or former employee, supervisor, or manager 

 

d. “Type 4 violence” means workplace violence committed in the workplace by 

someone who does not work there, but has, or is known to have had, a personal 

relationship with an employee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

60



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 3 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

3. Risk Factors: 

 

a. Environmental risk factors in the facility or area in which health care services or 

operations are conducted may contribute to the likelihood or severity of a 

Workplace Violence incident. Environmental risk factors include risk factors 

associated with the specific task being performed. 

 

b. Patient specific risk factors are specific to a patient that may increase the 

likelihood or severity of a Workplace Violence incident, such as the use of drugs 

or alcohol, psychiatric condition or diagnosis associated with increased violence, 

and condition or disease process that would cause confusion and/or 

disorientation, or history of violence. 

 

4. Work Practice Controls: Procedures, rules and staffing that are used to effectively reduce 

Workplace Violence hazards. Work practice controls include, as applicable, but are not 

limited to: 

 

a. Appropriate staffing levels. 

 

b. Provisions of dedicated safety personnel (e.g., Security Officers). 

 

c. Employee training on Workplace Violence prevention methods. 

 

d. Employee training on procedures to follow in the event of a Workplace Violence 

incident. 

 

 

 

 

 

POLICY: 

 

B. RESPONSIBILITIES 

1. The Safety Officer is responsible to initiate, implement, maintain and administer the 

WVPP. The Safety Officer may delegate duties, tasks and assignments via the 

Environmental Safety Committee. 

 
2. The Director of Quality & Patient Safety or designee is responsible to initiate, implement, 

maintain and administer the IIPP. 

 

3. Each Department Director/Manager/Supervisor and Employers (On-site 

Contractors/Vendors) of other employees is responsible for implementing, complying and 

supporting the WVPP. 

 

4. Each employee and other employees (contractors/vendors) are responsible for 

61



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 4 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

implementing, complying and supporting the WVPP. 

 

C. PLAN DEVELOPMENT 

 

1. WVPP development requires a multidisciplinary team approach, which includes 

Leadership and Management, along with employees and their representatives in 

developing, implementing, and reviewing the plan. 

 

2. The development, implementation, and annual review of the plan will be coordinated 

through the Environmental Safety Committee in conjunction with active involvement of 

employees and their representatives. 

 

D. COMMUNICATION 

 

WVPP information and updates are communicated through the following means: 

 

1. Annual WVPP evaluation and review 

 

2. Annual training (type of training is dependent on the roles, departments and specific risks 

associated with the job duties or environment) 

 

3. Department Specific Training (example: CPI Non-Violent Crisis Intervention) 

 

4. E-Learning self-learning module 

 

5. Department Staff Meetings 

 

6. SVMC will document and communicate to other employees, employers and between shift 

and units, information that may increase the potential for Workplace Violence incidents. 

 

Employees are encouraged to report safety concerns to the Safety Officer, Security, Risk Management, 

Employee Health and their Director, Manager or Supervisor. 

Attempts will be made throughout the year to solicit active participation of employees and their 

representatives in the review, creation, design and implementation of the WVPP and all training 

materials and sessions. The following methods will be used to solicit active participation: 

 

1. E-Learning modules 

 

2. Training session debriefings 

 

3. Staff meetings 

 

E. TRAINING 

 
All employees working in the facility, units, service lines, or operations shall be provided initial 

62



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 5 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

training, that includes an online module in E-Learning which covers the types of Workplace 

Violence, personal safety and reporting, followed by annual refresher training on the WVPP. 

 

Initial employee training will address the workplace violence risks that the employees are 

reasonably anticipated to encounter in their jobs, the workplace violence hazards identified in the 

facility, unit, service or operation, and the corrective measures SVMC has implemented. The 

initial training was provided when the Workplace Violence Prevention Plan was first established 

and when an employee is newly hired, assigned to perform duties for which required training was 

not previously required, and new or reassigned employees.  

 

Initial training includes: 

 

1. An explanation of the Workplace Violence Prevention Plan, including the hazard identification 

and evaluation procedures, general and personal safety measures implemented, how the employee 

may communicate concerns about workplace violence without fear of reprisal, how workplace 

violence incidents will be addressed, and how employees can participate in reviewing and 

revising the plan.  

 

2. How to recognize potential violence, factors contributing to the escalation of violence and how 

to counteract them, and when and how to seek assistance to prevent or respond to violence.  

 

3. Strategies to avoid physical harm. 

 

4. How to recognize alerts, alarms, or other warnings about emergency conditions and how to use 

identified escape routes or locations for shelters, as applicable. 

 

5. The role of private security personnel, if any. 

 

6. How to report violent incidents to law enforcement.  

 

7. Resources available to employees for coping with incidents of violence, including but not 

limited to, critical incident stress debriefing or employee assistance program. 

 

8. An opportunity for interactive questions and answers with a person on knowledge about the Workplace 

Violence Prevention Plan.   

In addition to District employees, WVPP training is required for: 

 

o Contracted/Contingent Workforce 

 

o On-Site Contractors that conduct regular business on SVMC property (i.e., On-Site 

Security, Renovo) 

 

o Licensed Independent Professionals not employed by the District and volunteers are not 

required to be trained by Cal/OSHA, but are highly encouraged to be familiar with the 

WVPP 

 

63



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 6 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

The level of training on WVPP depends on the workplace or job position risk level: 

 

o Low risk: E-Learning self-learning module  

 

o High risk: Non-violent crisis intervention training 

 

Employees performing patient care contact activities in higher-risk areas (example: Emergency 

Department), and those employees’ supervisors are required to attend annual formal Non-Violent 

Crisis Intervention training. Non-Violent Crisis Intervention training (CPI) is a focused training 

on de-escalation techniques as well as restrictive and non-restrictive interventions. The training 

reviews the topics included in the initial training and the results of the annual Workplace 

Violence Prevention Plan review and/or any review conducted due to new procedures or new 

information. 

 

Employees assigned to respond to alarms or other notifications of violent incidents or whose 

assignments involve confronting or controlling persons exhibiting aggressive or violent behavior 

(i.e., Security Officers) shall be provided training prior to initial assignment and at least annually 

thereafter that will include.  

 

1. General and personal safety measures. 

 

2. Aggression and violence predicting factors. 

 

3. The assault cycle. 

 

4. Characteristics of aggressive and violent patients and victims. 

 

5. Verbal interventions and de-escalation techniques and physical maneuvers to defuse and 

prevent violent behavior. 

 

6. Strategies to prevent physical harm. 

 

7. Appropriate and inappropriate use of restraining techniques in accordance with Title 22. 

 

8. Appropriate and inappropriate use of medication as chemical restraints in accordance with Title 

22. 

 

9. An opportunity to practice the maneuvers and techniques included in the training with other 

employees, including a meeting to debrief the practice session. Problems found are corrected. 

 

 

SVMC provides additional training when new equipment, work practices or hazards are 

introduced, or when a new, or previously unrecognized, workplace violence hazard has been 

identified. 

 

 

64



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 7 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

F. RISK ASSESSMENTS 

 
1. A risk assessment is required for all departments, units, service lines, (including 

outpatient areas), and services that include: 

 

o Environmental risk factors; 

 

o Community-based risk factors; 

 

o Operation area surrounding the facility such as employee parking areas and other 

outdoor surroundings; 

 

2. Include a review of workplace violence incidents that have occurred in each facility, 

department, unit, operations, (including outpatient areas), and services within the 

previous year, whether or not an injury occurred; 

 

3. Risk assessments will be conducted annually or whenever conditions change that could 

affect safety; 

 

4. The risk assessment shall be used to identify locations and situations where violent 

incidents are more likely to occur; 

 

5. Active engagement of employees and their representatives. 

 

 

Patient-Specific Risk Factors: 
 

Create procedures to identify and evaluate factors specific to patients that may increase 

the likelihood or severity of violence or the threat of violence (e.g. alcohol, psychiatric 

condition or diagnosis associated with increased risk of violence, any condition or disease 

process that would cause confusion and/or disorientation, or history of violence.  

 

1. Procedures for paramedics/emergency medical services to communicate with receiving 

facility to identify risk factors associated with patients being transported to the receiving 

facility  

 

2. Procedures for receiving facilities to communicate with law enforcement and 

paramedics/emergency medical services to identify risk factors associated with patients 

being transported to the receiving facility. 

 

Risk factors must include, but not limited to: 

 

1. Patient's mental status and condition that may cause the patient to be non-responsive to 

instruction or to behave unpredictably, disruptively, uncooperatively, or aggressively; 

 

65



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 8 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

2. A patient's treatment and medication status, type, and dosage, as is known to the health 

facility and employees; 

 

3. A patient's history of violence; 

 

4. Any disruptive or threatening behavior displayed by the patient.  

 

Visitors or Other Persons Who Are Not Employees 
 

Create procedures to assess visitors or other persons who are not employees who display 

disruptive behavior or otherwise demonstrate a risk of committing workplace violence.  

 

1. Policies outlining the circumstances under which a person will not be permitted to 

enter or remain in the facility. Hospital should train staff on what to do if such a person 

comes into the facility or becomes angry when asked to leave.  

 

2. Develop criteria for discontinuing the flagging of a visitor for risk of violence potential 

if the risk is due to a temporary situation.  

 

3. Develop process to credential and manage vendors. 

 

4. Develop a plan to communicate the violence potential of a visitor to staff.  

 

 

G. HAZARD CORRECTION 

 
1. Engineering and work practice controls shall be used to eliminate or minimize employee 

exposure to the identified hazards to the extent feasible. 

 

2. SVMC shall take measures to protect employees from imminent hazards immediately, 

and shall take measures to protect employees from identified serious hazards within 

seven business days of the discovery of the hazard. 

 

3. When an identified corrective measure cannot be implemented within the seven business 

day timeframe, such as a project that requires OSHPD approval, SVMC shall take interim 

measures to abate the imminent or serious nature of the hazard while completing the 

permanent control measures. 

 

4. Active engagement of employees and their representatives will be included in the hazard 

corrective measures whenever feasible. Employees will be informed of the results and 

corrective actions taken. 

 

5. Examples of Hazard Corrections include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 

a. Emergency Department: 

 

66



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 9 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

a. Electronic access control 

b. Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) cameras 

c. Security Officer Station – Posted 24 hours per day 

 

b. Maternal Child Health Unit: 

 

a. Electronic access control 

b. Access Control System 

c. CCTV 

d. Department policy in place for identifying visitors 

e. Department procedure for uniquely identifying mother-infants 

f. Security Officer Station – Posted 24 hours per day 

 

c. Pharmacy Department: 

 

a. Electronic access control 

b. CCTV 

 

d. Human Resources department: 

 

a. Access Control System 

b. CCTV 

 

AFFECTED PERSONNEL/AREAS: GOVERNING BOARD; MEDICAL STAFF; ALL HOSPITAL 

EMPLOYEES; VOLUNTEERS; VENDORS 

 

PROCEDURE: 

 

H. VIOLENT INCIDENT REPORTING (Internal and External to Cal/OSHA) 

 
A.  Internal reporting of workplace violence incidents may be accomplished by several 

means: 

 

1. During normal business hours Monday – Friday, employees may contact 

Employee Health Services (EHS) by dialing ext. 6174 or visiting the EHS office. 

They may also contact the Environment of Care/Safety and Security Manager at 

ext. 6008. 

 

2. After hours and weekends, incidents may be reported by using the electronic 

Incident Reporting System. 

 

3. For serious incidents, such as a death or injury requiring hospitalization, the 

employees’ supervisor, manager or director shall be contacted and that individual 

will immediately contact the administrator on-call and the Environment of 

Care/Safety and Security Manager or Safety Officer. 

 

67



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 10 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

4. External reporting of workplace violence incidents to Cal/OSHA shall be 

completed for incidents involving any of the following: 

 

 The use of physical force against a hospital employee by a patient or a 

person accompanying a patient that results in, or has a high likelihood of 

resulting in, injury, psychological trauma, or stress, regardless of whether 

the employee sustains an injury. 

 

 An incident involving the use of a firearm or other dangerous weapon, 

regardless of whether the employee sustains an injury. 

 

 An incident involving the death of an employee, hospitalization greater 

than 24 hours, one or more days away from work (which includes the 

day of the incident), restricted work or transfer to another job, medical 

treatment beyond “First Aid”, loss of consciousness, significant injury, or 

psychological trauma or stress as a result of the workplace violence 

incident. 

 

5. Timeframes for reporting to Cal/OSHA:   

 

1) Shall be reported online to Cal/OSHA within 24 hours if the incident 

involves: 

 

a. A fatality or an injury that requires inpatient hospitalization for a 

period in excess of 24 hours.  

b. Any incidents involving a firearm, dangerous weapon, loss of 

limb, or serious degree of permanent disfigurement. 

c. An urgent or emergent threat to the welfare, health, or safety of 

hospital personnel (potential exposure to death or serious 

physical harm) 

 

2) Shall be reported online to Cal/OSHA within 72 hours if the incident 

involves: 

 

a. All other incidents not listed above in section 3.a. b. c. 

 

b. The hospital shall submit an initial report with all information 

available within the allotted timeframe. There are no obligations 

by Cal/OSHA for the hospital to update the report online if 

additional information is made available at a later date. 

 

3) Reports to Law Enforcement  

 

a. Within 72 hours of an incident, the employer must report acts of 

assault or battery against on-duty hospital personnel to the local 

law enforcement agency if the incident results in injury or 

68



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 11 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

involves the use of a firearm or other dangerous weapon, even if 

there is no injury.   

 

4) Reports to the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) 

 

a. The death or significant injury of a staff member resulting from a 

physical assault that occurs within or on the grounds of a facility is an 

adverse event that must be reported to CDPH no later than five days after 

the adverse event has been detected.  If the event is an ongoing urgent or 

emergent threat to the welfare, health or safety of patients, personnel or 

visitors, the report must be made not later than 24 hours after the adverse 

event has been detected.   

 

 

6. Telephone reports to Cal/OSHA 

 

The Cal/OSHA WVP regulations states that employers must continue to report 

immediately by telephone to the nearest District Office of the Division of Occupational 

Safety & Health any serious work-connected injury, illness or death as required by Title 

8, California Code of Regulations, Section 342(a). 

 

A.  Local District Office: 

 

Fresno District Office 

2550 Mariposa St. Room 4000 

Fresno, CA. 93721 

Telephone: 559-445-5302 

 

B. Cal/OSHA does not accept telephone reporting in place of the online 

reporting noted in 3.a.b. The telephone reporting is a separate 

requirement for incidents involving death or serious work-connected 

injury. 

 

C. “Immediately” means as soon as practically possible, but no longer than 

8 hours after the hospital knows of the death or serious injury. In extreme 

exigent circumstances, the timeframe for reporting to Cal/OSHA may be 

extended up to 24 hours maximum. 

 

D. Information required when completing a telephone report: 

 

1. Time and date of accident/event 

2. Employer's name, address and telephone number 

3. Name and job title of the person reporting the accident 

4.  Address of accident/event site 

5. Name of person to contact at accident/event site 

6. Name and address of injured employee(s) 

69



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 12 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

7. Nature of injuries 

8. Location where injured employee(s) was/were taken for medical 

treatment 

9. List and identity of other law enforcement agencies present at the 

accident/event site 

10. Description of accident/event and whether the accident scene or 

instrumentality has been altered. 

 

B. VIOLENT INCIDENT LOG/RECORD KEEPING 

 
1. Records of workplace violence hazards identification, evaluation, and correction shall be 

created and maintained in accordance with Title 8, California Code of Regulations, 

Section 3203(b) & 5120(e)(1)(B). 

 
2. Training records shall be created and maintained for a minimum of 1 year. Per Title 8, 

California Code of Regulations, Section 3203(b). The records must include details with 

date of training, contents or summary of the training sessions, names and qualifications of 

persons conducting the training, and the names and job titles of all the persons attending 

the training sessions.  In addition, Title 22, California Code of Regulations, Section 

70214 states that orientation and competency validation must be documented in the 

employee’s file for the duration of their employment. 

 

3. Violent Incident Logs must be maintained for a minimum of five years, per Title 8, 

California Code of Regulations, Section 3342(h)(3). The Violent Incident Logs shall 

include: 

             1) The date, time, specific location and department of the incident. 

 

2) A detailed description of the incident. 

 

3) A classification of who committed the violence, including whether the perpetrator was a 

patient/client/customer, family/friend of a patient/client/customer, stranger with criminal intent, 

coworker, supervisor/manager, partner/spouse, parent/relative, or other perpetrator.  

 

4) A classification of circumstances at the time of the incident, including whether the employee 

was completing usual job duties, working in poorly lit areas, rushed, working during a low 

staffing level, in a high-crime area, isolated or alone, unable to get help or assistance, working in 

a community setting, working in an unfamiliar or new location, or other circumstances. 

 

5) A classification of where the incident occurred, including whether it was in a patient or client 

room, emergency room or urgent care, hallway, waiting room, rest room or bathroom, parking lot 

or other area outside the building, personal residence, break room, cafeteria, or other area. 

 

6) The type of incident, including whether it involved: 

 

a. Physical attack, including biting, choking, grabbing, hair pulling, kicking, punching, slapping, 

pushing, pulling, scratching or spitting;  

70



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 13 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

 

b. Attack with a weapon or object, including a knife, gun, or other object; 

c. Threat of physical force or threat of the use of a weapon or other object; 

 

d. Sexual assault or threat, including rape/attempted rape, physical display, or unwanted 

verbal/physical sexual contact; 

 

e. Animal attack; 

 

f. Other 

 

7) Consequences of the incident, including: 

 

a. Whether medical treatment was provided to the employee; 

 

b. Who, if anyone, provided necessary assistance to conclude the incident; 

 

c. Whether security was contacted and whether law enforcement was contacted;  

 

d. Amount of lost time from work, if any; and 

 

e. Actions taken to protect employees from continuing threat, if any. 

 

8) Information about the person completing the Log, including the person's name, job title, phone 

number, email address, and the date completed.  

4.  

 

5. All records required by this subsection shall be made available upon request to the Chief 

of the Division of Occupational Safety and Health or his/her representative (Cal/OSHA 

Investigators) for examination and copying. 

 

6. All records required by this section shall be made available to employees and their 

representatives, on request, for examination and copying (at no charge to the employee). 

 

C. VIOLENT INCIDENT INVESTIGATION 

 
A.  A post-incident response and investigation shall be completed for any employee, 

contractor, or other individuals that are covered by the WVPP, and have been involved in 

an act of violence or threat of violence. Steps that shall be taken in the event of an 

incident of violence (include, but not limited to): 

 

1. Provide immediate medical care or first aid to employees or covered individuals 

who have been injured in the incident; 

 

2.  Identify all employees involved in the incident. 

 

71



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 14 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

3.  Making available individual trauma counseling to all employees affected by the incident. 

 

4. Reviewing any patient-specific risk factors and any risk reduction measure that were 

specified for that patient. 

 

5. Reviewing whether appropriate corrective measures developed under the Workplace 

Violence Prevention Plan were – such as adequate staffing, provisions and use of alarms 

or other means of summoning assistance, and response by staff or law enforcement were 

effectively implemented.  

 

7. Soliciting from the injured employee and other personnel involved in the incident their opinions 

regarding the cause of the incident, and whether any measure would have prevented the injury. 

8. Conduct a post-incident debriefing as soon as possible after the incident with all 

employees, supervisors, and security involved in the incident. 

 

9. Completion of the Workplace Violent Incident Report form. 

 

4. The Security Department will conduct a Security Incident Report for any 

incidents that cause injury or have a high probability of causing injury, 

psychological trauma or stress. 

 

5. All violent incidents will be reviewed through the Environmental Safety 

Committee and reported to Senior Leadership, and finally up to the Board of 

Directors (annually). 

 

D. ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE WVPP 

 
A.  An annual review of the WVPP must be completed at the end of each fiscal year. The 

goal of the annual evaluation is to evaluate the effectiveness of the plan and any actions 

implemented throughout the plan year. The annual review of the WVPP shall include: 

 

1. Staffing, including staffing patterns and patient classification systems that 

contribute to, or are insufficient to address, the risk of violence; 

 

2. Sufficiency of security systems, including alarms, emergency response, and 

security personnel availability; 

 

3. Job design, equipment, and facilities; 

 

4. Security risk associated with specific units, areas of the facility with uncontrolled 

access, late-night or early morning shifts, and employee security in areas 

surrounding the facility such as employee parking areas and other outdoor areas; 

 

5. Review of the Violent Incident Log. 

 

6. Additional limited review may be required following new procedures, processes 

72



 Environment of Care Policy & Procedure Manual 

 

SUBJECT:  

WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN 

SECTION:   

Security Management 

Page 15 of 15 

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the latest version. 

 

 

or information. An updated review of the plan shall be completed whenever 

necessary, as follows: 

 

 To reflect new or modified tasks and procedures, changes in staffing, 

engineering controls, construction or modifications of the facilities, 

evacuation procedures, alarm systems and emergency responses; 

 

 To include newly recognized workplace violence hazards; 

 

 To review and evaluate workplace violence incidents that result in a serious 

injury or fatality; or 

 

 To review and respond to information indicating that the WVPP is deficient 

in any area. 
 

REFERENCES: 

 

 The Joint Commission (2024). Hospital accreditation standards. EC.02.01.01, EC.04.01.01, 

HR.01.05.03, LD.03.01.01 Joint Commission Resources. Oak Brook, IL.  

 

 Cal/OSHA Workplace Violence Prevention in Healthcare (2019). 

 

 Title 8, California Code of Regulations, Section 3203(b); 5120(e)(1)(B); 3342(h)(3). (2019) Retrieved 

from https://www.dir.ca.gov/samples/search/query.htm.  
 

 Title 22, California Code of Regulations, Section 70214 (2019). Retrieved from 

https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=I

D7365A90D4BB11DE8879F88E8B0DAAAE&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionTyp

e=Default&contextData=(sc.Default)&bhcp=1.  

 

 California Hospital Association. (January 2017). Healthcare Workplace Violence Prevention: How to 

comply with the Cal/OSHA regulations. Retrieved from 

https://www.calhospital.org/sites/main/files/file-

attachments/workplaceviolenceprevention_preview_0.pdf.  

 

CROSS REFERENCES: 

 

 SECURITY MANAGEMENT PLAN  

 INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM  

 

 

73

https://www.dir.ca.gov/samples/search/query.htm
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=ID7365A90D4BB11DE8879F88E8B0DAAAE&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=Default&contextData=(sc.Default)&bhcp=1
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=ID7365A90D4BB11DE8879F88E8B0DAAAE&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=Default&contextData=(sc.Default)&bhcp=1
https://govt.westlaw.com/calregs/Browse/Home/California/CaliforniaCodeofRegulations?guid=ID7365A90D4BB11DE8879F88E8B0DAAAE&originationContext=documenttoc&transitionType=Default&contextData=(sc.Default)&bhcp=1
https://www.calhospital.org/sites/main/files/file-attachments/workplaceviolenceprevention_preview_0.pdf
https://www.calhospital.org/sites/main/files/file-attachments/workplaceviolenceprevention_preview_0.pdf
https://powerdms.com/link/sierraview/document/?id=1578291
https://powerdms.com/link/sierraview/document/?id=1579318


STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE:  MATERNAL SEPSIS    
Sepsis Alert and Initial Screen:  suspected infection  AND  ≥ 2 SIRS criteria 

Maternal SIRS Criteria (2 or more): HR > 110 (15 min), RR > 24 (15 min), 
WBC > 15,000, <4000, or > 10% Bands, Temp > 100.4°F or < 96.8°F

 Maternal Sepsis = post-miscarriage, post-abortion, pregnancy, & post-partum up to 42 days
 DO NOT take VS during contractions
 SEPSIS= positive initial screen + 1 organ dysfunction (on back)

Actions – if repeat maternal sepsis alert, contact provider to update orders
Upon initiation of the maternal sepsis alert, initiate the Maternal Sepsis Alert order set:

 Initial Lactic Acid Level (time drawn_______ Result_________)

 UA, C & S  (time obtained_______ Result (positive or negative)_________



 Portable CXR – only if pulmonary source is suspected (order time: ______)

Contact the provider for the following orders:
 Antibiotics (any)  - Goal to infuse = ONE HOUR    (Time_______________) Admin irregardless of 

blood culture status, if antibiotics are immediately available. *Lactation-friendly

Within 3 hrs presentation of septic shock, the patient must have:

 30 ml/kg (use current weight) crystalloid IV Fluid– Prefer LR

If the patient has a diagnosis such as (examples)CHF, kidney disease, or cardiomyopathy, MD may 
use less �uid but must document the reason why, and how much was ordered. May use IBW

 _________weight in pounds / 2.2 = ______________ kilograms

               kg x 30 ml = _____ ml; or speci�c volume:                               Time Started _____________ 

Within 6 hrs of presentation of severe sepsis, the patient must have:

 Repeat Lactic Acid (will re�ex in 3 hrs if 1st value > 2) – Time drawn______ Result_____

Septic Shock 
 Initial Hypotension (>=2 SBPs <85 or MAP <65)

A MAP less than 65 (x15min) is considered a maternal septic shock patient
**persistent hypotension = 2 consecutive BP readings with MAP ≤65 or SBP ≤85 in the hour 

following IV bolus, and/or a (valid) lactic acid > 4.0

Date:____________

Alert Initiation done

Yes    or    No

DUE
3 HRS.
FROM
ALERT

DUE
3 HRS.
FROM
ALERT

DUE 6 HRS.
FROM ALERT

THIS IS NOT PART OF THE PERMANENT MEDICAL RECORD" "RETURN TO THE STROKE/SEPSIS COORDINATOR

Blood cultures, ORDERED & drawn (Time___________)

SIERRA VIEW MEDICAL CENTER SEPSIS ALERT CHECKLIST

Form # 025592 REV 1/25

Porterville, California 93257

Sierra View Medical Center is a service of
the Sierra View Local Health Care District.

PATIENT’S LABEL

SEPSIS ALERT CHECKLIST

Form has
 2 sides

74



DUE
6 HRS.
FROM
ALERT

Within 6 hrs presentation of septic shock, the patient must have:

 Repeat lactic acid (as above)

 Vasopressors, for persistent hypotension** - Levophed (Norepinephrine) preferred

 Repeat volume status and tissue perfusion assessment, (AFTER IVF began) consisting of:

  A focused exam (VS, CP exam, Cap Re�ll, Pulses, Skin, shock index value) 

 (M.D. CAN DOCUMENT “SEPSIS REASSESSMENT COMPLETED” WITH A TIME)

Measure of End Organ Injury
Respiratory

Coagulation Status
Liver

Cardiac

Renal

Mental status
Lactic Acid

Criteria (need 1)
Invasive  or non-invasive mechanical ventilation
Platelets < 100 OR INR > 1.5, OR PTT > 60
Bili > 2
Initial or persistent hypotension (after �uids)
• SBP < 85 or
• MAP < 65 OR
• > 40 MMhG decrease in SPB (documented)
Creat > 1.2 or
Doubling of creatinine, or
Urine output < 0.5 ml/kg/hr ( x 2 hrs)
Agitation, confusion, or unresponsiveness
 2 in absence of labor

Evidence of Organ Dysfunction

THIS IS NOT PART OF THE PERMANENT MEDICAL RECORD" "RETURN TO THE STROKE/SEPSIS COORDINATOR

SIERRA VIEW MEDICAL CENTER SEPSIS ALERT CHECKLIST

Form # 025592 REV 1/25

Porterville, California 93257

Sierra View Medical Center is a service of
the Sierra View Local Health Care District.

PATIENT’S LABEL

SEPSIS ALERT CHECKLIST

75







































































































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 



  1 

 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

SIERRA VIEW LOCAL HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

 

The monthly December 17, 2024 at 5:00 P.M. in the Sierra View Medical Center Board Room, 

465 West Putnam Avenue, Porterville, California  

 

Call to Order: Chairman REDDY called the meeting to order at 5:02 p.m. 

 

 Directors Present: REDDY, LOMELI, MARTINEZ, PANDYA 

  

 

 Others Present: Donna Hefner, President/Chief Executive Officer, Melissa Mitchell, VP 

of Quality and Regulatory Affairs, Craig McDonald, Chief Financial Officer, Jeffery 

Hudson, VPPCS/CNO/DIO, Ron Wheaton, VP of Professional Service, Tracy Canales, VP 

of Human Resources and Marketing, Terry Villareal, Executive Assistant and Clerk to the 

Board, Malynda Parsons, Senior Marketing and Community Relations Specialist, Cindy 

Gomez, Compliance Privacy Officer, Alex Reed-Krase, Legal Counsel, Harpreet Sandhu, 

Chief of Staff 

 

I. Approval of Agenda:   

 

Chairman REDDY motioned to approve the Agenda. The motion was moved by Vice 

Chairman LOMELI, seconded by, Director PANDYA and carried to approve the agenda.  

The vote of the Board is as follows:  

 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes 

MARTINEZ Yes 

PANDYA Yes 

 

II. Closed Session: Board adjourned Open Session and went into Closed Session at 5:04 p.m. 

to discuss the following items: 

 

A. Pursuant to Evidence Code Section 1156 and 1157.7; Health and Safety Code 

Section 32106(b):  Chief of Staff Report 

 

B. Pursuant to Evidence Code Section 1156 and 1157.7:  

 

1. Evaluation – Quality of Care/Peer Review/Credentials 

 

2. Quality Division Update – Quality Report 

 

C. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54962; Health and Safety Code Section 32106(b):  

Discussion Regarding Trade Secrets Pertaining to Service and Strategic Planning 

(2 Item). Estimated date of Disclosure: January 1, 2026  



Board of Directors – Minutes 

November 26, 2024 

 

  2 

 

D.  Pursuant To Gov. Code Section 54956.9(D)(2), Conference With Legal Counsel 

About Recent Work Product (B)(1) And (B)(3)(F):  Significant Exposure To 

Litigation; Privileged Communication (1 Item).  

 

III. Open Session: Chairman REDDY adjourned Closed Session at 5:35 p.m., reconvening in 

Open Session at 5:35 p.m.  

 

Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.1; Action(s) taken as a result of discussion(s) in 

Closed Session.  

    

A. Chief of Staff Report provided by Chief of Staff Sandhu. 

 Information Only; No Action Taken. 

 

B. Pursuant to Evidence Code Section 1156 and 1157.7: 

 

1. Evaluation – Quality of Care/Peer Review/Credentials 

 

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Vice Chairman 

LOMELI, seconded by Director MARTINEZ and carried to approve the 

Evaluation – Quality of Care/Peer Review/Credentials as presented.  The 

vote of the Board is as follows: 

 

  REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes 

MARTINEZ Yes  

PANDYA Yes 

 

2. Quality Division Update – Quality Report 

 

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Vice Chairman 

LOMELI, seconded by Director MARTINEZ, and carried to approve the 

Quality Division Update – Quality Report as presented.  The vote of the 

Board is as follows: 

 

  REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes 

MARTINEZ Yes  

PANDYA Yes  

 

C.  Discussion Regarding Trade Secrets Pertaining to Service and Strategic Planning  

 Recommended Action: Information Only; No Action Taken 

 

D.  Conference with Legal Counsel 

 Recommended Action: Information Only; No Action Taken 

 

IV. Public Comments 

 



Board of Directors – Minutes 

November 26, 2024 

 

  3 

 

None  

 

V. Consent Agenda 

 

The Medical Staff Policies/Procedures/Protocols/Plans and Hospital 

Policies/Procedures/Protocols/Plans were presented for approval (Consent Agenda 

attached to the file copy of these Minutes).  It was moved by Vice Chairman LOMELI, 

seconded by Director MARTINEZ, and carried to approve the Consent Agenda.   The 

vote of the Board is as follows: 

 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes 

MARTINEZ Yes 

PANDYA Yes 

 

VI. Approval of Minutes:  

 

A. Following review and discussion, it was moved by Director MARTINEZ  and seconded 

by Vice Chairman LOMELI to approve the November 26, 2024 Minutes of the Regular 

Board Meeting as presented. The motion carried and the vote of the Board is as follows:   

 

REDDY  Yes 

LOMELI  Yes  

MARTINEZ Yes 

PANDYA  Yes 

 

VII. Business Items 

 

A. November  2024 Financials 

 

Craig McDonald, CFO presented the Financials for November 2024. A copy of this 

presentation is attached to the file copy of these minutes.  

   

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Director PANDYA, seconded  

by Vice Chairman LOMELI and carried to approve the November  2024 Financials 

as presented.  The vote of the Board is as follows: 

 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes  

MARTINEZ Yes 

PANDYA Yes 

 

B. Annual Nursing Report 

 

Jeff Hudson, VP of Patient Care Services and Chief Nurse Executive presented the 

annual nursing report. Following review and discussion, it was moved by Vice 



Board of Directors – Minutes 

November 26, 2024 

 

  4 

 

Chairman LOMELI, seconded by Director PANDYA and carried to approve the 

Annual Nursing Report as presented.  The vote of the Board is as follows: 

 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes  

MARTINEZ Yes 

PANDYA Yes 

 

C. Retirement Planning Advisory Committee Report 

 

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Director PANDYA, seconded 

by Vice Chairman LOMELI and carried to approve the Retirement Planning 

Advisory Report as presented.  The vote of the Board is as follows: 

 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes  

MARTINEZ Yes 

PANDYA Yes 

 

D. Resolution 12.17.24/01 Escrow of Westwood Property 

 

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Director PANDYA, seconded 

by Vice Chairman LOMELI and carried to approve the resolution ratifying the sale 

of the Westwood property to the Burton School District. The vote of the Board is 

as follows: 

 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes  

MARTINEZ Yes 

PANDYA Yes 

 

E. Board Seat Vacancy – Zone 3; Appointment of New Director by the January 28, 

2025 Regular Board Meeting.  

 

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Director PANDYA, seconded 

by Vice Chairman LOMELI and carried to approve leaderships plan to obtain 

applicants to fill the vacancy by the January 28, 2025 Regular Meeting. The Vote 

of the board is as follows: 

 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes  

MARTINEZ Yes 

PANDYA Yes 

 

F. Election of Officers – Board Organization  

 



Board of Directors – Minutes 

November 26, 2024 

 

  5 

 

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Director PANDYA, seconded 

by Director MARTINEZ and carried to approve Liberty Lomeli as Chairman of the 

Board. The vote of the Board is as follows:  

 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes  

MARTINEZ Yes 

PANDYA Yes 

 

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Chair LOMELI, seconded by 

Director MARTINEZ and carried to approve Bindusagar Reddy as Vice Chairman 

of the Board. The vote of the Board is as follows:  

 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes  

MARTINEZ Yes 

PANDYA Yes 

 

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Chair LOMELI, seconded by 

Director PANDYA and carried to approve that Areli Martinez continue to be 

Secretary of the Board. The vote of the Board is as follows:   

 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes  

MARTINEZ Yes 

PANDYA Yes 

 

G. Appointment of CFO as Treasurer of the Board; Resolution No. 12-17-2024/02 

 

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Chair LOMELI, seconded by 

Director MARTINEZ and carried to approve Craig McDonald, CFO, as the 

Treasurer of the Board by Resolution No. 12-17-2024/02. The Vote of the board is 

as follows: 

 

REDDY Yes 

LOMELI Yes  

MARTINEZ Yes 

PANDYA Yes 

 

 

VIII. CEO Report 

 

Donna Hefner, President/CEO provided a report of activities and happenings around Sierra 

View.  

 

IX. Announcements:  

 



Board of Directors – Minutes 

November 26, 2024 

 

  6 

 

A. Regular Board of Directors Meeting – January 28, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

XII. Adjournment 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:17 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

 

 

 

Areli Martinez 

Secretary  

SVLHCD Board of Directors 

 

AM: trv 



1 

 

 MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

SIERRA VIEW LOCAL HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

 

The special meeting of the Board of Directors of Sierra View Local Health Care District was held 

January 20, 2025 at 1:00 P.M. in the Sierra View Medical Center Board Room, 465 West Putnam 

Avenue, Porterville, California.  

 

Directors Present: LOMELI, MARTINEZ, REDDY 

Director Recused: PANDYA 

 

Others Present: Donna Hefner, President/Chief Executive Officer, Melissa Mitchell, VP of 

Quality and Regulatory Affairs, Terry Villareal, Executive Assistant and Clerk to the 

Board, Harpreet Sandhu, Chief of Staff, Jennifer Hansen, Legal Counsel, David Balfour, 

Legal Counsel. 

 

I. Call to Order: Chairman LOMELI called the meeting to order at 1:18 p.m.  

 

II. Approval of Agendas: Chairman LOMELI asked for approval of the agenda. It was moved 

by Director MARTINEZ and seconded by Vice Chairman REDDY and carried to approve 

the agenda as presented.  The vote of the Board is as follows:  

 

LOMELI Yes 

REDDY Yes 

MARTINEZ Yes 

 

III. Closed Session: Board adjourned Open Session and went into Closed Session at 1:19 p.m. 

to discuss the following items: 

 

A.  Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.9: Conference with Legal Counsel 

Regarding Threatened Litigation 

 

IV. Open Session: Board adjourned Closed Session at 2:12 p.m. and went into Open Session 

at 2:12 p.m. to discuss the following items: 

 

A.  Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.9: Conference with Legal Counsel 

Regarding Threatened Litigation 

 

Action Item  

Following review and discussion, it was moved by Vice Chairman REDDY, 

seconded by Director MARTINEZ, that the Board and Medical Executive 

Committee (MEC) jointly approve the plan of correction as discussed. The vote of 

the Board is as follow:  

 

LOMELI  Yes  

REDDY  Yes 

MARTINEZ  Yes  



Board of Directors – Minutes 

January 20, 2025 

 

2 

 

 

V. Public Comments 

None.  

  

XIII. Announcements:  

 

A. Regular Board of Directors Meeting – January 28, 2025 

 

Adjournment: There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 2:14 p.m.  

 

Respectfully submitted,  

 

 

 

Areli Martinez 

Secretary 

SVLHCD Board of Directors 

AM: trv 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 







 

 
SVLHCD BOARD OF DIRECTORS APPLICATION 

 

Thank you for your interest in joining the Sierra View Local Health Care District Board.  Use 

this form to provide useful information about yourself, to ensure the best match between you and 

the district.   

 

Candidate Name: ______________________________________________________________ 

 

Contact Phone Number: ______________________Cell number: ____________________ 

 

Home Address: _ ________________________________________ 

                        

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

E-mail address (please write it carefully):   

___________________________________ __________________ 

 

Please describe your relevant experience and/or employment.  You may also attach a resume. 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Please describe the area(s) of expertise/contribution you feel you can make to further the mission 

of SVLHCD: 

 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 ____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Why are you interested in serving as a Board member for SVLHCD?: 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Hans Kashyap

, Porterville, CA 93257

Board of Directors, Sierra View Medical Center (2022-2024)

Chair, Ad Hoc Operational Efficiency , BOD--SVMC (2022--2023)

Non-Linear Forecasting, Strategic Planning, Economic Analysis,

C-Suite Experience, Management & Financial Analysis

Improving Operational Efficiencies, Streamlining Ops, Finance, Investments,

Accurate Forecasts, Trade-Off Analysis, Management Consulting

In Pursuit of helping SVMC to be recognized as a First Choice hospital in

the Central Valley, where patients know they will be treated with courtesy,

and competence, with low wait times, and to help SVMC maintain a solid

financial foundation to serve residents of Porterville for decades to come.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 



 

 

 

 
Appointment of Food and Dietetic Services Director 

2025 

 

In compliance with CMS A-0620, Section 482.28(a) (1), Zaelin Stringham is hereby 

appointed to the position of Food and Dietetic Services Director by the Board of 

Directors and President/CEO of Sierra View Local Health Care District dba Sierra View 

Medical Center for 2023. 

 

Zaelin Stringham, MS, RD, is a full-time employee who has worked in the field of Food 

and Nutrition for eight plus years,  Ms. Stringham holds a Master’s Degree in Nutrition 

and Dietetics, is a Registered Dietetian, certified by the Commission on Dietetic 

Registration holds a national certification as a ServSafe Food Protection Manager, and 

ServSafe Instructor and Proctor.  Ms. Stringham is granted the authority and delegated 

responsibility by the Sierra View Local Health Care District Board of Directors for the 

operation of the Food and Dietetic Services Department.  

 

Authority: 

 

The Food and Dietetic Services Director has the authority and responsibility for daily 

management of dietary services, implementing training programs for dietary staff and 

ensuring that established policies and procedures are maintained to address at least the 

following: 

 

Responsibility: 

 

The Director of Food & Nutrition Service will: 

 

 Ensure appropriate safety practices for food handling; 

 

 Ensure appropriate emergency food supplies; 

 

 Ensure department orientation, work assignments, supervision of work and personnel 

performance; 

 

 Ensure menu planning, purchasing of foods and supplies, and retention of essential 

records (e.g. cost, menus, personnel, training records, Quality Assurance/Performance 

Improvement – QA/PI Reports, etc.); and, 

 

 Chair the Food and Nutrition Service Department QA/PI Program. 

 

 

___________________________________ ____________________________________ 

President/CEO                              Date Chairman of the Board                          Date 



 

 

 
 

Appointment of Environmental Safety/Security Officer 

2025 
 

Mr. Gary Wilbur has been appointed to the position of Environmental Safety/Security Officer by the Board 

of Directors and President/CEO of Sierra View Local Health Care District.  

 

Qualifications: 
 

Mr. Gary Wilbur has over five (25) years of experience in the field of; Fire Protection, Installation and 

maintenance of Security Systems, Telecommunication Engineering, and Facility Project Management. In 

addition, he has installed Fire Alarm Systems and Surveillance Cameras.   

 

Mr. Wilbur has participated in Facility Master Plan design. Furthermore he has, and currently serves as 

Director of our IT and Project Management departments. He has immense knowledge of the facility plant 

and its infrastructure.  

 

Mr. Wilbur is a member of: 

National Fire Protection Agency 

Project Management Institute 

 

Mr. Wilbur has certifications from: 

California State Fire Marshall 

Fire Protection Agency 

Governor's Office of Emergency Services 

California Specialized Training Institute for HAZMAT Awareness 

Global Information Assurance Certification 
 

Authority: 
 

The Environmental Safety/Security Officer, through the Environmental Safety Committee, has the 

authority to intervene whenever conditions exist that pose an immediate threat to life, health or pose an 

immediate threat of damage to equipment, buildings and assets. 
 

Responsibility: 
 

The Environmental Safety/Security Officer will: 
 

 Chair the Environmental Safety Committee Meetings; 
 

 Participate in and oversee hazard surveillance and reporting of the findings to the Environmental 

Safety Committee, and will ensure that any problems identified are effectively corrected and reported 

to the Environmental Safety Committee; 
 

 Participate in the Safety Education Orientation Program for new employees and continuing education 

for all employees, physicians and volunteers; 
 

 Monitor, evaluate and oversee the Hazardous Materials and Hazardous Waste Management Program 

and Hazard Communication Program; 
 

 Implement and enforce the physical Security Plan and Program, and report on Security Program 

actions and incident occurrence findings at least quarterly to the Environmental Safety Committee; 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 Will assist in the development, implementation and continued assessment of the facility’s Emergency 

Management Program and Emergency Operation Plan in conjunction with the Environmental Safety 

Committee; 
 

 Will be responsible for the Life Safety Management Program, and report monthly fire drill and 

quarterly fire alarm system testing analysis to the Environmental Safety Committee; 
 

 Will be responsible for reviewing Incident Reports in conjunction with Risk Management and 

Employee Health when applicable; 
 

 Ensure that findings generated from the Environmental Safety Committee’s Program activities are 

communicated at least quarterly to the Performance Improvement Council, Hospital Leadership, 

Medical Staff, CEO and the Board of Directors; 
 

 Participate in the development of organization-wide Safety, Emergency Operations and Environment 

of Care policies and procedures, in addition to department specific safety policies and procedures; and 
 

 Develop and provide annual evaluations of the effectiveness for all Environment of Care programs to 

the Environmental Safety Committee, CEO and the Board of Directors. 

 

 

 

 

 

     _______________________________________      __________________________________________   
      President/CEO                                Date             Chairman of the Board                          Date 

     

  

 



 

 

 

Appointment of Patient Safety Officer 

2025 
 

Melissa Crippen, DHA, LCSW, CCM, CPHQ, Vice President of Quality and Regulatory Affairs has been 

appointed to the position of Patient Safety Officer by the Board of Directors and President/CEO of Sierra 

View Local Health Care District. 
 

Qualifications: 
 

Ms. Melissa Crippen has over 19 years of experience in the healthcare field, in a variety of settings.  Within 

that time she has experience working in the Emergency Room in a level 1 Trauma/Burn facility, substance 

abuse treatment, and mental health assessment and intervention. Ms. Mitchell is currently the VP of Quality 

and Regulatory Affairs and is the executive sponsor of the Beta Heart initiative – focused on reducing 

medical harm.  
 

Authority: 
 

The Patient Safety Officer, through the Patient Safety Committee, has the authority to intervene whenever 

conditions exist that pose a threat to patient safety.  
 

Responsibility: 
 

The Patient Safety Officer will:  

 

 Integrate a patient safety program throughout the organization that provides oversight, ensures 

alignment of patient safety activities and provides opportunities for all individuals who work in the 

organization to be educated and participate in patient safety and quality initiatives; 

 

 Serve as the primary point of contact for questions about patient safety and who coordinates patient 

safety for education and the deployment of system changes; 

 

 Foster a just culture environment in which frontline personnel feel comfortable in disclosing errors, 

including their own, while maintaining professional accountability; 

 

 Participate in and oversee the patient occurrence reporting function and ensure that identified patient 

safety issues are effectively corrected and reported to the Patient Safety Committee, MEC and Board 

of Directors;  

 

 Co-Chair the interdisciplinary Patient Safety Committee Meetings whose focus is to create, implement 

and administer mechanisms to oversee root cause analysis of every appropriate incident; 

 

 Provide feedback to frontline staff about lessons learned, disclose the organization’s progress toward 

implementing safe practices and provide professional training and teamwork techniques; 

 

 Assist in the development, implementation and continued assessment of the facility’s Risk 

Management Plan and Patient Safety Plan; and   

 

 Maintain compliance with reporting of Adverse Events to the appropriate external mandatory 

programs. 

 

 

__________________________________ _____________________________________________ 

President/CEO                                   Date Chairman of the Board                             Date 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 


















	January 28 2025 Regulare Board Meeting Agenda - Final
	This Page Intentionally Left Blank
	1-28-25 Consent Agenda - SLT
	APPLICANT REFERENCES AND REQUESTS FOR REFERENCES
	CASHLESS SYSTEM
	CONTAMINATION WITH RADIOACTIVE MATERIALS
	FOOD PURCHASING AND RECEIVING
	FOOD SERVICE CLEANING AND SANITATION
	 GACH Title 22 Regulations § 70273 (i) Sanitation

	FOOD SERVICE EMERGENCY PLAN
	FOOD SUPPLIES AND STORAGE
	FOOD STORAGE
	FROZEN FOOD

	Ice Cream Products 6 months
	Vegetables  8 – 12 months
	Potatoes 2 – 6 months
	REFRIGERATOR FOODS


	Milk  not after date on carton
	Cheese 45 – 60 days
	Juice (thawed) 2 weeks
	Canned fruits 3 days
	Margarine and butter 30 days
	Desserts
	Gelatin (Jell-O) 3 days

	Produce 1 – 2 weeks

	HOLIDAY PAY
	INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM
	LEAVE OF ABSENCE - ADMINISTRATIVE
	LEAVE OF ABSENCE - CALIFORNIA MANDATED
	MAXIMUM SALARY GRADES, MEETING OR EXCEEDING (LUMP SUM PAYMENTS)
	RADIOACTIVE WASTE DISPOSAL
	RECOGNITION - STAFF ACHIEVEMENTS MILESTONES
	SCOPE OF SERVICE - FOOD AND NUTRITION
	SERVICE AWARDS
	AWARDS

	SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL PAY
	TRAINING AND MEETING TIME PAY
	VOTING
	WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN
	B. RESPONSIBILITIES
	1. The Safety Officer is responsible to initiate, implement, maintain and administer the WVPP. The Safety Officer may delegate duties, tasks and assignments via the Environmental Safety Committee.
	2. The Director of Quality & Patient Safety or designee is responsible to initiate, implement, maintain and administer the IIPP.
	C. PLAN DEVELOPMENT
	D. COMMUNICATION
	WVPP information and updates are communicated through the following means:
	E. TRAINING
	F. RISK ASSESSMENTS
	G. HAZARD CORRECTION
	H. VIOLENT INCIDENT REPORTING (Internal and External to Cal/OSHA)
	B. VIOLENT INCIDENT LOG/RECORD KEEPING
	1. Records of workplace violence hazards identification, evaluation, and correction shall be created and maintained in accordance with Title 8, California Code of Regulations, Section 3203(b) & 5120(e)(1)(B).
	C. VIOLENT INCIDENT INVESTIGATION
	D. ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE WVPP

	025592_Sepsis Alert Checklist_1-25

	1-28-24 Consent Agenda - MEC
	This Page Intentionally Left Blank
	Minutes of Regular BOD Meeting 12.17.24
	Minutes of a Special Meeting of the BOD  January 20 2025
	This Page Intentionally Left Blank
	Zone 3 Applicants as of 1-24-25
	Zone 3 Applicant2025 - Chris Peterson
	Zone 3 Applicant2025 - Hans Kashyap

	This Page Intentionally Left Blank
	Appointment of Food and Dietetic Services Director 2025 Stringham
	Appointment of Environmental Safety Security Officer 2025 Wilbur
	Appointment of Patient Safety Officer 2025 Crippen
	This Page Intentionally Left Blank
	FS Board Pkg 12.24

